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Rcview Report on the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Information

To the Board of Directors of
Akfen Holding A.Ş.

lntroduelion

We have reviewed the accornpanvinu interim condensed consolidated fınancial sıatements ofAkfen
1 lolding A.Ş. (“the Cornpanv” or” “Akfen Holding’) and its subsidiaries (ali together referred to as “the
Group”) as of3O June 20l7. which cornprise the interim consolidated staıement of financial position and
the inıerirn consolidated statement of profit or loss and oıher comprehensive income. irnerim consohdated
statement ofchanges in equity and the interim consolidated statemenı of cash flows and the explanatory
notes for the six-month-period then ended. The management of the Group 15 responsible for the preparation
and fair presernation of tlıese interim condensed financial infonnation in accordance with Turkish
Accounting Standards (TAS”) 34 Interim Financial Reponing. Dur responsibility is to express a
conclusion on ıhese interim condensed consolidated fınancial information based on our review.

Seope of a Review

Ve conducted our review in accordance with the Standard on Review Engagemenıs (SRE) 2410, “Limited
Review of Interim Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of the Entity” issued by
Public Oversight Authorltv (‘POA”). A review of interim fınancial information consists ofmaking
inquiries, primariI of persons responsible for financial reporting process, and applying analytical and other
review procedures. A review of interim fınancial information 15 substantially Iess in scope than an
independent audit perfonned in accordance with the Independenı Auditing Standards of Turkey and the
objective ofwhich is to express an opinion on dıe fınancial statements. Consequentl, a review on the
interim fınancial information does not provide assurance that the audit tim vill be aware of alI signifıcant
matters which would have been identifıed in an audit. Accordingly, we do not express an audit opinion.

Concinslon

Based on our review. nothing has come to our attention which may cause US 10 believe that the
accompanying interim condensed consolidated fınancial information are not prepared, in alI material
respecıs, in accordance with TAS 34.

Müşavirlik Anonim Şirketi
Global Limited

18 A
İstanbul, Turkey

A memberfinıı efEmxt S ‘<sung GbaI Lmtsd
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(Convenience translation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated fırıarıcial statements originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi

Consolidated Financial Position as of June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are expressed in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) uniess otherwise speci(ied.)

ASSETS Refereı,ce,i Reviewed And/ted

izine 30, Decenıher 31,
2017 2016

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 5 1,813 46,132
Financial investments 60,729 60,938

-ResıricıL’d banA’ ha1aızctç 6 60, 729 60,938
Trade receivables 10?

— DZIL’frOIU relawdparıies 28 107
Other receivables 164 5,611

— Duefrom relawdparıies 9-28 71 5,611
— Dnefrom ıhirdparık 9 93 --

Prepaid expenses 2,503 308
Cunent income tax asseis 21 9 93
Other current assets 2.125

SUB-TOTAL 67,660 113,082
- Assets heid for sale 10 253,296 1,520,583
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 320,956 1,633,665

Non-Current Asseis
Otherreceivables 611,506 401,359

- Dize from relaıedparıies 9-28 611,500 301,092
- Dize from ıhirdpanies 9 6 267

investments accounted using the equity
Ilmethod 1,882,193 1,978,045

Propeny, plant and equipment 12 1,168 4,848
Intangible assets 4,217 308

-Otlier in!angible asseis 13 3,217 308
Prepaid expenses 6
Other non-current assets 40 270
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS 2,499,130 2,385,430
TOTAL ASSETS 2,820,086 4,619,095

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.



(Convenience translation of the independeot auditors’ report and consolidated rınancitıl statements originally
issued in TurLish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi

Consolidated Financial Position as of June 30,2017
(Ali amounts are expressed in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless othenvise specifıed.)

Aııdiled
RL’fL’rL’IWL’s Rer(Lıred

Jııne 30, DecL’nıher 3!,
2017 20/6

Cııncn( Liahili Iles
Shart tcmı horrowings 7 4,502 4.51)4
Shorl lcrrn ponion orlong-temı horrodngs 7 729.019 %84.961
Trade payahles 1.535 2.736

-D,w ta relakdpartiLs 8-28 1,172 1,019
-Dne ta ıhfrdparncs 8 363 1,717

Other payahlcs 3.519 2.298
-Dua ta rehııedparlies 9-28 2!
-Dua ta thirdpartks 9 3,498 2,298

Payahks for Empioyec hcneüts 196 175
Short-Icrm provisions 2.98% 3,001

-S1,ort ten,, proı’ıstansfor enp1ap’e beneflıs 15-17 2,988 3,001
Othcr currcnt 1 ahu ıtıes

—— 50
SUIITO’fAL 741,759 897,725
Liahilitles rclntcd to assets held for sale 10 — 944,445
TOTAL Ct[ImENT LRBILITIES 741,759 1,842,170
Non—C u rre ııt t,ia 1)11 Iies
Lono lcrm horıo’inas 7 487.887 201,430
Other pa>ahlcs 11.523 10.581

-Dua ıorL’laıedparıws 9-28 11,524 10,58!
Long tam provısıons 1.49% 1.410

-Lang ların provısionsfor eııplovee hene/iıs 15-17 1,498 1.410
TOTAL NON.Ct’RRENT UABILITIES 500,909 213,421
TOTAL LİAHILITIES 1,242,668 2,055,591
EQUI’n 1,577,41% 1,963,504
EquiIy ,ıtlrihutahlc to cquily holden of the parcnt 1,577,31% 1,709,188
Paid-in slıarc caputal 1% 72,493 667,081
Paid-in capilal restatemcot diftrcnce (7.257) (7.257)
SInıra prcmiurns (discounts) 43.639 (131.785)
Trcasuıy slmres (1.899)
EI’fcct of hussinass comhınations onda common conlrol 1,057 6.236
Othcr cornprchcnsıvc ıncomc/loss not la hc rcclassified 10 prolit or Ioss 68.620 187,732

Gains / (lasses,> on revaluatlo,, and reıneas,,reı,IL’nt 68,620 187,732
—Revaluafla;,fund ofpropenj’. plan! and eqoipnıeıu 72,573 192.431
-Reıneasure,,,ent gains’’1asses,> an defined henefupkms 0,954,) (3,699)

Other comprehensivc incomc/Ioss 10 be reclassiflcd in proFıt or loss 373,675 373.492
-Curreney ıranslatla,, d(reııce 18 379,767 388,923

- Cashflo;r hedge resen’es 18 (6,092,) (15,431)
Restrictcd resenes 20.479 20.479
Retained camings 931.392 110.028
Net proüt for the period 72.310 485.081
Non-controlliııg intercsts 1% 254.316
TOTAL LIABIL1TIES AND EQL’t’fl’ 2,826,086 4,019,095

The accompanying notes form an integral pan of these consolidaıed Fınancial statements.
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(Convenience translation of the independent nuditors’ report and consolidated financial statements originally issued in

Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehcnsivc Income
For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in ıhousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless otherwise specifıed.)

Cost of sales (-)

CR055 PROFIT

General administrative eNpenses (-)
Other incomc from operaling aclivities

Other expenses fiom operating activitics (-)
Shure ofproül frorn invcstmenls accounted

using ik equity method

OI’ERATINC I’ROFIT FRONI

OPERATING ACTI VITI ES

Ineorne fiom investing activities

Expense from investing activities

I’ROI’IT BEFORE FINANCE

INCONİ E/( EXI’ENSES)

Finance income
Finance expenses

__________________________________________________________________

I’ROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE I’AX FRONI
CON’I’IN(TINC OPERATIONS

_________________________________________

Ta (Epense)İ Income, Continuing

Opcrations
Current period ta< cxpenses
Uefcncd (ax income / (cxpense)

__________________________________________________________________

I’ROFIIİ(LOSS) FOR ThE PERİOD

FRONI CONTINLINGOPER\TIONS

_________________________________________

PROFIT/(LOSS) AFI’ER TÜ FOR ThE

l’ERIOD FRO\h DISCONTINJ.ED

Ol’ERATIONS

Pcriod (loss)prolit from disconıinued
opcrations

__________________________________________________________________

I’ROFIT / (1.055) FOR THE PERIOD

_______________________________________________________

Attrihutahle Io
Non-controlling interesıs
Equity holdeN of the parent

____________________________________________________________

Net proflt / (loss) for the period

__________________________________________________________________

Earnings/(Losscs) Per Share

Eamingsl(Iosses) per share from continued
operations

__________________________________________________________________

(Losscs)/eamings pershare from discontinued
operations

__________________________________________________________________

Diluled Earnings Per Share (TRV in fuli)

____________________________________________________________

The accompanving news form an integral part of (kese consolidated önancial statements.

PROFIT Oli LOSS FRO\l CONTINtING
OPERATİONS

Revenuc

Reference.ç

RL’rkııed I%>f rmıt’wc’d ReLieşrL’( ı%’<>ı rt’vkıı’eı!

Jamıary 1— Apti! 1— Ja,urnn’ 1- .-Ipri! !—
Ju,ıe 30, June 30, isme 30, 2016 June 30. 2016

2017 2017 (Restiired) Resrak’d)

19 2,124 1.139 131024 68.596
19 -- (65.563) (33.744)

20
21

Il

23

24
25

26
26

Il)

27

27

3!

2,124 1.139 65,461 34,852

(18.090) (8.446) (42.245) (13.065)
326 82 4.420 3.747

(3.864) (124) (315) (108)

102,174 96.640 66.178 14.057

82,671) 89,291 93,499 39,483

44.371 44.160 498 72
(20) -- (29.947) (29,947)

127,021 133,351 63,050 9,608

39.167 19,606 55,048 15,488
(87.608) (32.692) (83.097) (50,088)

78,580 120,365 36,001 (24,992)

(49) — (1,604) 2,912
-- -- (2.950) (1,980)

(49) -- 1.346 4.892

78,531 120365 34397 (22,080)

(11.852) -- 6.146 7.868
66,679 120365 30,533 (13,212)

(5.631) -- 2.785 2.146
72.310 120.365 37.758 <16,358)
66,679 120365 40,533 (14,212)

1.08 1,66 0.47 (0.30)

(0,08) -- 0.05 0,08
1,00 1,66 0,52 (0,23)
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(Convenicnce translation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated fınancial statcments originaliy
issued in Turkislı)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkislı Liras (“TRY’) unless otherwise specifled.)

ıVo! re viLnved ReWeweil N,g revk’wed
STATEM ENT OF OTHER Revkwed AyrI! 1- Janııa’ 1- AyrIl!
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME Junuarı’ 1- June3O, Jnne3O. 2016 JuneJO. 2016

isme 30. 2(117 2017 (Resmied) (ResmieıIl

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERİOD 66,679 120365 40.543 (13,212)
Otlıer Comprehensive income that vilI not be
reçlassifled to Profıt or Loss (982) (1,112) (151) Il
Slıarc of other camprehensive income of
inveslmenıs accounled using the equily method that
vilI nal be reciassifled tü profıt er loss (982) (1.112) (151) Il
OIlıer comprelıensive income that wiil hc
reçlassifled to
profıt or Ioss 23,620 (29,508) 12,334 27,782
Curreney translaıion dilTerence 5.645 (844) 5.849 9.527
Share of olher comprehensive income of
investments accounkd using the equity method
that iil be reciassilled to profıt or Ioss 17.975 (28.664) 6.485 18.255
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 22,638 (30,620) 12,183 27,793

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
89317 89,745 52,726 13,581

Distribution of Total Comprelıcnsive income
Non-controlling interests (3.456) 330 9.114 9.328
Eguity bolders of the pareot 92.773 89.415 43.612 1.253
Total Comprehcnsive Income 89317 89,745 52,726 13,581

The accompanying notes form an inıegral pafl of these consolidated fınancial statemcnts.
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Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi

Consolidated Cash FIow Statement
For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali arnounts are in ıhousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless oiherwise specifled.)

A, Cash Floıvs from Operating Activities
Profı(/Ioss for ilie period
Profıı’(ioss) from continued operations
Net (loss)’profit from discontinued operations
Adjustmcnts to rcconcilc (ioss)/profit
Adjustments for depreciation and amortization
Adjustments for provisions related with

eınployee beneflts
Adjustment for reversal of impairment of propeiy. plant

and equipment
Adjustments for the undistributed proflts of

investments accounted using the equity method
Adjustments regarding (gam) losses related to changes

in share or disposal ofassociates, subsidiaries, and
fınancial investments

Adjustments for unrealized foreign exchange
Adjustments for impairment on assets
Adjustments for interest income and expenses
Adjustments for tax expenses
Other reconciling adjustments
Clıanges ili working capitai
Adjustments for decreases/ (increases) in trade

receivables
Adjustments for decreases/ (increases) in other

receivables retated wiih opevations
Adjustments for other adjustments for other increase
(decrease) in working capital
Adjustment for increases in irade payables
Adjustment for decreases/(increases) in other

payabies from operations
Cash flows from operations
Tax payments
Payments related with provisions for employee

benefıts
Dividends received
Net cash flows on discontinuing operations

__________

Reı’kwcıl

________

JUIIL’ 30,
2016

Resiated

_________

81,373
40,543

33 40

-- 29,418

(102,174) (66,178)

(44,147)
28,893

3,598
15,453

49

The accompanying notes form an integrai part of these consolidated financial statements.

Refereı,ce.ç

Reı’icwed
June 30,

2017

(106.310)
66,679
78,531

(11.852)
(95,278)

1,045

34,3 97
6,146

(20,257)
17,43 8

(52,934)

50,355
1,604

19-20

Il

23

1,

24-25
26

Il

1,972 --

(116,382) (391776)

(107) (11,190)

(109,699) (12,558)

(2,350) (2,802)
(1,203) (6,280)

(3,023) (6.946)
(133,981) (19,490)

(613) (2,708)

-- (100)
20.132 78,081
19.152 25,590
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(Convenience translntion of the independeot auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements originally
issucü in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi

Consolidated Cash FIow Statement
For the Six Month Period Ended June 30,2017
(Ali amoun(s are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless otherwise speci fled.)

Jııne 30.
2017

62,901
54 8,729

(43 0,207)
(51,598)

1.877

June 30,
2016

Restaiec/
(33,433)

740

(54,395)
213 ,7S2

(146,867)
(5 8,365)
(19,3 87)
(13 .55 8)

(6,355)

The accompanying noles form an inlegrai part of these consolidated linancial statements.

Referciices

B, Cash Flows from investment Operations (910)
Interest received 1,766
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangible

assets (1,275) (18,316)
Net cash flows from discontinued operations (1,401) (15,857)

C, Cash Flows from Financing Activities
Proceeds from borrowings
Repayments of borrowings
Interest paid
Other cash flow
Net cash flows from disconıinued operations
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivaients
Cash and cash equivaients al ilie beginning of the

period
Cash and cash equivaients at the end of the period

5

D

(5900)
(44,3 19)

46,132 22,424
1,813 15,969
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(Convenience translation of the indcpendent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statemcnts originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Allonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(AlI amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (‘TRY”) unless otherwise specifıed.)

ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY

Akfen Holding A.Ş. (“Akfen Holding” or the “Company”) was established in Turkey in 1999.
Having established its first company in 1976, Akfen Holding operates to invest in, administer and
coordinate its subsidiaries and affiliates operating in industries such as airport management and
operations, constrııction, seaport management and operations, marine transportation, water
distribution and wastewater services, energy and real estate. Akfen Holding, together with its
subsidiaries and joint ventures, wili be hereinafter referred to as the ‘Group.
Akfen Holding transferred its contracting operations in infrastructure construction projects that it
had been performing since its establishment to a new sphere outside contracting when it was
awarded the Build-Operate-Transfer (“BOT) model for Istanbul Atatürk Airport in 1997,
transposing the investment planning models it applied for airports to many infrastructure projects in
Turkey as an investor and thus transforming into one ofTurkeys infrastructure investment holdings.
As of June 30, 2017, Akfen Holding has 4 subsidiaries (December 31,2016:2 subsidiaries and 7
joint ventures). Consolidated financial statements of the Group as of June 30, 2017 and for the year
ended includes the share ofAkfen Holding and subsidiaries and the Group’s share in affiliates and
the eqııity accounted joint ventures. The Company hasjoint controlling rights in TAV Havalimanları
Holding A.Ş. (“TAV Airports”). Akfen Yenilenebilir Enerji A.Ş. (“Akfen Renewable Energy”).
Mersin Uluslararası Liman Işletmeciliği A.Ş. (“MIP”), PSA Akfen Liman Işletmeciliği ve Yönetim
Danışmanlığı A.Ş. (“PSA Port”).
As of June 30, 2017, The Group has business paıtnerships with nationally and internationally
reputable partners such as Tepe lnşaat Sanayi A.Ş. (“Tepe Construction”), PSA international
(“PSA”), Adroports de Paris Management, European Bank for Reconstruıction and Development
(“EBRD”) and international Finance Corporation (IFC”).
Akfen Holding shares had been traded in Borsa Istanbul A.Ş. (“BİAŞ”) under the code “AKFEN’
since May 14, 2010 but vere de-listed as ofMay 12, 2016.
Under the Communique on the Rights to Squeeze-Out and SelI-Out by the Capital Markets Board
of Turkey (“CMB’), it was declared that the rights to sell-out and squeeze-out would be exercised
since the total shares, in Akfen Holding, of share holders acting in concert (Hamdi Akın, Selim
Akın, Akınısı Makina Sanayi A.Ş., Akfen Turizm Yatırımları ve Işletmecilik A.Ş. and Akfen
Altyapı Danışmanlık A.Ş. (“Akfen lnfrastructure”)) reached 97.11% of the Company’s total
share/vote ratio, and the 3-month period ofprescription after December 23, 2015, the date when the
rights to sell-out could be exercised, elapsed on March 22, 2016. In addition, the controlling
shareholders of the Company exercised their right to squeeze-out other shareholders, which did not
exercise their right to sell-out, following the lapse of the 3-month period of prescription (between
December 23,2015 and March 22,2016) ata cost ofTRY 10,9998, the arithmetic mean ofweighted
average prices in the stock exchange within thirty days preceding December 22, 2015, when it was
publicly declared ıhat the status of controlling shareholder had been allained within the framework
of the provisions of the Communique. Afler the CMB approval was obtained on April 28, 2016, the
trading ofAKFEN.E shares pertaining to the Company was suspended by Borsa Istanbul as ofApril
29, 2016. CSD (Central Securities Depository of Turkey) cancelled those shares that vere subject
to squeeze-out, and the payment of the squeeze-out fee was performed on May 11,2016.
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(Convenience transintion of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated fınancial statements originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless otherwise specifled.)

ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY
(conıinued)

in the resolutions of Board of Directors of Akfen Holding dated June 1, 2016 and June 20, 2016,
the Board decided İhat it k to be determined whether it would be convenient to spin-off the shares
of the Group in Akfen Termik Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş. (“Akfen Thermal Energy”), İDO, Akfen
Water, TAV investment, Akfen Gayrimenkul Yatırım Ortaklığı A.Ş., Adana İpekyolu Enerji Üretim
Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Adana İpekyolu”), Akfen Enerji Gaz Santrali Yatırımları ve Ticaret A.Ş.
(“Akfen Energy Gas”), Akfea Enerji Uretim ve Ticaret A.Ş, (“Akfen Power Generation”), Akfen
Rüzgar Enerjisi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Akfen Wind Power”), Akfen Karaköy Gayrimenkul Yatırımları
ve lnşaat A.Ş. (“Akfen Karaköy”), Akfen Güllük Çevre ve Su Yatırım Yapım İşletme A.Ş. (“Akfen
Water Güllük”), Akfensu-Arbiogaz Dilovası Atıksu Arıtma Tesisi Yapım ve İşletim A.Ş.
(“Akfensu-Arbiogaz Dilovası”), Akfen Güneş Enerjisi Yatırım ve İşletme A.Ş. (“Akfen Solar
Power”) and Batı Karadeniz Elk. Dağ. Ve Sis. A.Ş. and be invested as capital in-kind in Akfen
Mühendislik A.Ş. (“Akfen Engineering”) in order to maintain the shares of companies which have
a positive impact on the Group’s assets, allained an optimal capital structure in consideration of the
existing business plans, are able to and have the potential to create strong cash flows for
shareholders’ equity and have an increasing dividend yield, and to exclude the shares of those
companies the investment needs of and development work for which continue, and the fields of
operation and partnerships ofwhich are re-arranged accordingly. The process of publishing a notice
regarding the procedure of spin-off based on such resolution as per Article 174 of the Turkish
Commercial Code was completed, anda General Assembly meeting was held on February 16, 2017
in relation to this spin-off. The process was completed when the General Assembly resolutions vere
approved and registered on February 16, 2017.
Within the scope of the division, there has been a decrease of TRY 1,466,357 related to the
companies transferred in the Group’s total assets. Within the scope of the division, short and long
term liabilities ofTRY 969,2 14 have been transferred to the companies that are separated from the
Group structure and the change in equity amounted to TRY 497,143 resulting from the transfered
companies. In addition, the total comprehensive income of the related compaaies between Januaıy
1 -Februaıy 16, 20 1 7 is TRY 2 1 ,740.

As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the shareholders holding the shares of Akfen Holding
and their respective percentage of shares are provided below:

.Iune 30, 2017 December 31. 2016
Amount % Amount

Hamdi Akın(*) 62.200 85,80 572.365 85.80
Selim Akın 2.5ı8 3.47 23.ı74 3,47
Akfen Infrastrucıure 7,154 9.87 65,829 9.87
Other Shareholders 621 0.86 5.713 0.86
Paid-in capital (nominal) * 72,493 100 667,081 100
Afıer ıhe spin-off procedure of Akfen 1-lolding on Fehruary ı6, 20ı7, the Company’s capital decreased to 72.493 and thcre

was no change in the shares of its shareholders

Akfen Holdings address is as follows:
Koza Sokak No:22 Gaziosmanpaşa
06700 / Ankara-Türkiye
TeI:903124081000-Fax:903124410782
Web: http://akfen.com.tr

As of June 30, 2017, the number of employees employed by the Company and the Group is 54
(December 31,2016: 55) and 33,491 (December 31, 2016: 34,864), respectively.

Subsidiaries and joint ventures of Akfen Holding are listed below:
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(Convenience translation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statcments originaliy
issocd in Turkislı)

Akfcn Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) uniess otherwise specifıed.)

ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY
(conıiıuwd)

0 Sııhsidiark’s
The Companys shares held in its alI subsidiaries as of December 3!, 2016, vere transferred to
Akfen Engineering foliowing the spin-off on February 16, 2017, and as of June 30, 2017, the
Company has no subsidiaries.

AAfen Gayrintenkıd Yannın Ortaklığı A.Ş. (“Akfrıı REJT’9
Following the spin-offprocedure ofAkfen Holding on Februan’ 16, 2017, the shares heid in Akfen
REİT vere transferred to Akfen Engineering. Therefore. Akfen REIT which has been a subsidiary
of the Company in the previous periods. has ceased tube a subsidian: as ofiune 30, 2017.
Akfen REIT was incorporated when the trade name of Aksel Turizm Yatırımları ve İşletmecilik
A.Ş. (AkseI”) was changed and the latter was transformed into and restructured as a real estate
investment trust. Aksel was first incorporated on Jtıne 25, 1997 asa pannership of Hamdi Akın and
Yüksel inşaat A.Ş. to make domestic tourism investments. Akfen Holding then purchased Yüksel
inşaat A.Ş. shares in Aksel in 2006 and Akfen REIT became a subsidiary of Akfen Holding. The
restructuring was registered on August 25, 2006 through the resolution of the CMB No. 31/894 of
JuIy 14, 2006 following the board resolution ofApril 25, 2006, thus transforming Akfen REIT into
a ‘Real Estate lnvestment Trust”. The acquisition of the trade name of Real Estate lnvestment Trust
and the change in field of btısiness vere published on the Trade Registn’ Gazeıte of August 31,
2006.
The main field of business for Akfen REIT is to invest in real estate-based capital market
instruments. establish and develop a real estate portfolio and engage in business for the purposes
and subjects stated in Articles 23 and 25 of the CMB Communique on Principles Governing Real
Estate Investment Trusts (Serial yI. No: Il). Akfen Holding, the controlling slıareholder in Akfen
REIT. signed a framework agreement with Accor, one of the world’s leading hotel chains. to develop
hotel projects in Turkey under the brand names Novotel and Ibis Hotel. Akfen REIT mainly
develops hotel projecıs under brand names Novotel and Ibis Hotel and leases this out to Tamaris
Turizm A.Ş. (“Tamaris’). a 100% affiliate of Accor operating in Turkey. Akfen REİT shares have
been traded on BIAŞ underıhe share code AKFGY” since May 11,2011.
On Februan’ 21, 2007, the shares of Akfen Gayrimenkul Ticareti ve İnşaat A.Ş. (“Akfen Trade”),
an associate ofAkfen Holding, vere transferred to Akfen REIT over their nominal value. The main
field ofbusiness for Akfen Trade is to make real estate-based investments, and establish and develop
a real estate portfolio. On May 31, 2011. Akfen REIT incorporated a subsidiary called Akfen
Karaköy Gayrimenkul Yatırımları ve inşaat A.Ş. in order to develop a hotel project in Karaköy,
lstanbııl. 70% ofAkfen Karaköy shares belong to Akfen REIT.
Akfen Trade holds 97.72% and 95% shares, respectively in Russian Hotel lnvestment 13V (“Russian
Hotel” or “RHI”), which was incorporated in the Netherlands on September 21,2007, and in Russian
Property lnvestment 13V (“Russian Property” or “RPI”). which s’as incorporated in the Netherlands
on January 3, 2008. The main fıeld of business for the Russian Hotel is to develop hotel investments
to be operated by Accor in the Ukraine and Russia. The main fıeld of business of the Russian
Property, on the other hand, is to carıy out oWıce projects in Russia.
On March 18, 2011, Akfen REIT incorporated a 100% subsidiaıy under the trade name Hotel
Development and lnvestment 13V (HDP’) in the Netherlands in order to develop hotel projects in
Russia. A share sales agreement signed between HDI and Beneta Limited on September4, 2013 to
take over the shares of Russia-based Severnyi Avtovokzal Limited Company (“Severnyi”). Severnyi
holds the rights for the project designed in the center of Moscow on a 2,010-m2 land asa 31 7-room
hotel, the building licence for which is already acquired. Ibis Hotel Moscow build underthis project
has started operations on July 16, 2015.
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(Cunvcniencc translation of the independcnt auditors’ report and consoiidatcd fınancial statements originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY’) unless othenvise specifled.)

ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY
(continued)

0 Sııbsidhıries (conıüızıed,J
Ali shares of HDI owned by Akfen REIT vere sold to Akfen Trade which k 100% subsidiary of
Akfen REIT on March 27, 2017 ata amount ofTRY 62,624.
As of June 30, 2017, the total number of rooms in the 20 hotels owned by Akfen REİT is 3,628
while the total number ofbeds corresponding to such number of rooms k 7,114.

AAfeıı Ternük Enerji Yatırnııtarı A.Ş. (“AAfen Thernıal Energy ‘9
Following the spin-off procedııre of Akfen Holding on February 16,2017, the shares held in Akfen
Therrnal Energy vere transferred to Akfen Engineering. Tiıerefore, Akfen Thermai Energy which
has been ü subsidiary of the Company in the previous periods, has ceased to be a subsidiaıy as of
February 16, 2017.
in addition to hydroelectric power plant investments. Akfen Holding plans other energy investments
under Akfen Termik Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş.. The trade name of Akfen Enerji Yatırımları Holding
A.Ş.. a subsidiar of Akfen Holding, was ehanged as Akfen Termik Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş. during
the Extraordinary General Assembiy Meeting heid on December 19, 2014.
Affılialed to Akfen Therınal Energy. Akfen Power Generation obtained the power generation
licence for a natıırai gas power plant in Mersin with an installed capacity of 450 MW on Marclı 8,
2012.
On December 18, 2012, an application for amendment was fıied to EMRA for increasing the
installed capacity of Mersin Combined Natural Gas Power Plant from 570MW to 1,148.4 MW, and
the Environmental impact Assessment (“EIA) Report issued was adopted as flnai. in addition to
this, a capital increase took place and amendments to the licence vere completed on January 13,
2014. in addition, the construction of the substation by the Group which wili be transferred to
Türkiye Elektrik iletim A.Ş. (“TEIAŞ”) free of charge was completed, and the sııbstation become
operational on April 7, 2013 foliowing its temporary admission. Disassembly and cleaning works
in the Fıeid are compleled and a ietter certifying was obtained from the Ministry of Environment
and Urbanization.

The DA Apphcation Fiie submitted to the Ministry in reiation to the 380 kV Mersin Combined
Natural Gas Power Plant - Konya Ereğli Sııbstation Power Transmission Line project that is planned
for construction by Akfen Power Generation was examined and found appropriate in line with
Articie 8 of the DA Reguiation. The EIA process for the project was then conıpleted.
Akfen Thennal Energy padicipated, with a share of 50%. in Adana İpekyolu. which was
incorporated in order to develop an import coal-fueled power plant with a power generationcapacity
of 615 MWm-600 MWe in Adana-Yumurtalık. As of October 30, 2015. 40% of Adana ipekyolu
shares that vere held by Selim Akın vere taken over. Following the capitai increase by Akfen
Thermai Energy, Hamdi Akın did not exercise his cali option and the share of Akfen Holding in
Akfen Thenual Energy increased to 99.64% as of .May 27, 2016.

AAfen Enerji Dağıünı ve Ticaret A.Ş. (‘t4Afeıı Poıt’er Distribııtion ‘9
As of December 29, 2016, Akfen Holding transferred ali of its shares in Akfen Power Distribution
to Akfen Engineering. Therefore, Akfen Power Distribution which is a subsidiary of the Company
in the previous periods, has ceased to be ü subsidiary as ofiune 30, 2017.
The main fleld of business of Akfen Power Distribution is energy investments. Akfen PowerGas,
Akfen Uluslararası Enerji Faaliyetleri ve Ticaret A.Ş., Akfen Wind Power and Akfen Solar Power
companies, which are cunently non operational and are under, Akfen Power Distribution.
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(Conveniencc translation of the independeot auditors’ report and consolidated rınancial statements originaliy
issued in Turkisli)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (TRY) unless otherwise specifıed.)

ORGANİZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY
(conlinned)

ii) Jolyıl Ve,ıtııres

ü) Joint t’eııtııres not included in the division

TA VAirporıs
TAV Airporis was incorporated with the irade name Tepe Akfen Vie Yatırım Yapım ve İşletme
A.Ş. in 1997 in Turkey for the reconstrııction of the International Terminal of Istanbul Atatürk
Airport. The purpose of incorporation ofTAV Airports is lo reconstruct the International Terminal
Bııilding at Istanbul Atatürk International Airport and operate the terminal for 66 months. The main
fıeld ofbusiness at TAV Airports is to construct terminal buildings and operate airports or terminais.
On June 3, 2005. TAV İstanbul Terminal İşletmeciliği A.Ş. (“TAy İstanbul”) signed a concession
agreenıent witlı the General Direciorate of State Airports Authority (DI-lMl”) in order to operate
the International Terminal at Atatürk International Airport and the Domestic Terminal nt Atatürk
Inteniational Airporis until 2021 for a period of 15.5 years.
A lender process was held on May 3,2013 for the construction of Istanbul New Airport. As concems
the tender process, which was held pursuant to the tender specifications for Istanbul New Airport
that would be constructed under a BOT model within the fraınework of the procedures and
principles to be set by the DHM in line with the LawNo. 3996 and the Resolution No 2011/1807
by the Council ofMinisters. it was announced that the best bid was placed by anotherjoint venture.
The opening of Istanbul New airpon may cause Istanbul Atatürk international Airport to close
before the expiry of the concession contraci and lead to a change in expected amonization period of
prepaid rent and Ieasehold assets. However, in a letter that DHMI sent to TAV Istanbul and TAV
Holding on January 22, 2013, it was stated that DHMİ would compensate for alI losses of profit the
company whieh would incur in relation to the overlapping period ofoperations ifthe new airport on
the European side of Istanbul would be commissioned before the expiıy ofTAV Islanbuls Rental
Agreement where independent organizations could be brought in lo calculate the reimbursement
amount. Considering the uncertainty as to when Istanbul Atatürk International Airport would
definiteiy cease operations and the fact that the carrying amount of assets could be recovered if the
closing date would be earlier than the expiry date of the concession contract, TAV Airports
calculates the amortisation date for the prepaid rent as well as for leasehold improvements by taking
into account the year 2021 when the concession contract period will expire.
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(Convenicnce translation of the indepcndent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statcments originaliy
issucd in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(AlI amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY) unless otherwise specitied.)

ORCANİZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY
(co,ııinued)

ii) Joint Ventures (continued

t,,) filiz! vezıtures nal induded in the division (continued)

TA VAirports (continued)

BOT contracts vere signed between TAV Esenboğa Yatırım Yapım ve İşletme A.Ş. C’TAV
Esenboğa”) and TAV İzmir Terminal İşletmeciliği A.Ş. (“TAV Izmir”) and DHMI; between TAV
Urban Georgia LLC and State Airports Authority of Georgia (“JSC”); between TAV Batumi
Operations LLC and the Georgian Ministıy of Economic Development (“GMED”); between TAV
Tunisie SA (“TAV Tunisia”) and the State Airports Autlıority of Tunisia (“OACA”) and dıe
Ministry of Transport (“MOT”); between TAV Macedonia Dooel Petrovec and the Macedonian
Ministry of Transport (“MOTC”) while a BTO contract was signed for the Madinah Airport in Saudi
Arabia between Tibah Airporıs Development Company CJSC. a joint venture among TAV
Airports. Al Rajhi Holding Group and Saudi Oger Ltd.. and the Saudi Arabian State Airporıs
Autlıority (“GACA”). In addition. TAV Ege Terminal Yat. Yap. ve işl. A.Ş., TAV Milas Bodrum
Terminal İşlctmeciliği A.Ş. and TAV Gazipaşa Alanya Havalimanı Işletmeciliği A.Ş. signed a
concession agreement with DHMİ. Tlıese contracts and agreements require Ihat TAV Airports
constructs. reconstrııcts or manages airports within tlıe time periods set and, in return. acquires the
right to operate the said airports for time periods set previously. At the end of contract terms, TAV
Airports wilI transfer the ownership of the constructed buildings to the relevant organization
(DElMİ, JSC. GMED. OACA. MOT. MOTC and GACA). in addition. the Group signs individual
agreements pertaining to airport operations.

A concession agreement was signed on April 11, 2012 between ZAIC-A Limited (“ZAIC—A”) and
the Republic of Croatia for the new passenger terminal to be constructed at Zagreb Airport. Aviator
Netherlands B.V. (“Aviator Netherland”) was incorporated and became 15% shareholder in ZAIC
A. TAV Airports hold 100% of shares in Aviator Netherlands. Handover procedures vere
completed on December 6,2013 and TAV Airports took over the construction and operation works
in which TAV Holding has a share of 15%. The concession period wili end in April 2042.

in addition. TAV Airports signs individual agreements pertaining to airpod operations. TAV
Airports also provides other airport operation services via ATO Turizm Işletmeciliği A.Ş. ÇATO”),
Havaş Havaalanları Yer Hizmetleri A.Ş., RTA Havalimanları Yiyecek ve Içecek Hizmetleri A.Ş.
(“BTA”). TAV Işletme Hizmetleri A.Ş., TAV Bilişim Hizmetleri A.Ş., TAy Ozel Güvenlik
Hizmetleri A.Ş. and TAV Akademi Eğitim ve Danışmanlık Hizmetleri A.Ş., alI being its direct
subsidiaries and affıliaıes delivering duty-free. catering, ground. IT, security and management
serv ices.
Based on the renml agreement dated December 16.2011. TAV Ege rented the international terminal
at Izmir Adnan Menderes Airport on Januan’ 10, 2015, thus acquiring operating rights until
December 31, 2032. TA\’ İzmir was legally ciosed down. with alI üs assets and liabilities being
İransferred to TAV Ege.
An agreement was signed on July 11, 2014 between TAV Milas Bodrum Terminal Işletmeciliği
A.Ş. and DHMİ for the concession of the operating rights of Milas-Bodrum Airports curreni
international terminal, CIP / General Aviation Terminal and domestic terminal as welI as their
supplements. This agreement covers the operating rights for the international terminal from October
22,2015 until December 31,2035 and for the domestic terminal from July 2014 until December 31,
2035.
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ORGANİZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY
(contitıned)

ıl) Joint Ventures (continued)

a) Jainı ventures 11<)! iııchıded iyi the dh’isünı (continued,J

TA VAirports (continued,)

ATÜ has acquired the operating rights for the duty-free stores at Houston George Bush Airport in
Texas, U.S. for a period of 10 years. The airport served approximately 41 million passengers in
2014 and the total area of duty-free stores operated k 700 square rneters. Following the relevant
tender. BTA is awarded the operating rights for catering areas at the New Muscat international
Airport in Muscat, capital city of Ornan. The term of the operating rights wili commence in 2017
and covers a period of 10 years. As ofAugust 1,2016, BTA has staded to operate catering areas at
Zagreb international Airport in Zagreb, capital city ofCroatia, and deliver in-flight catering services.
The term of the operating rights is 13 years.
TAV Airporis shares were olTered to the public on Februan’ 23, 2007 and have been tmded at BiAŞ
under the symbol TAVHL” since then. Akfen Holding has signed a share sale agreement for ali of
its 8,119% stake in TAV Havalimanları with Tank ÖWA Aipha GmbH on June 9. 2017, for the
amount of USS 160 million. According to the decision of the Board of Directors with the same date.
assets and liabilities ofTAV Airports are shown under the assets heid for sale in the consolidated
financial statements dated June 30. 2017.
AlIP

MIP was incorporated on May 4, 2007 by PSA-Akfen Holding Joint Venture Group. which
submitted the highest bid and was awarded the contract on the transfer of operating rights for Mersin
Port, which is owned by the Republic ofTurkey State Railways (tCDD”), for a period of36 years
during the lender held by the Republic of Turkey Presidency of Privatization Administration
(“OİB”). Through the concession agreernent signed with OIB and TCDD on May 11, 2007, MIP
took over Mersin Port from TCDD to operate the port for a period of 36 years. Akfen Holding and
PSA havejoint control over MIP, in which each has 50% of shares.
Mersin Port is a key port not oniy for Turkey but also for the Middle East and the Eastern
Mediterranean thanks to its geographical location, capacity, extensive Iıinterland and the advantages
brought by the ease of multi-modal connections both domestically and abroad. The first phase of
the port expansion project (‘EMH”) that staded at MIP in 2014 in order to enable the port to serve
vesseis with a capacity of 10,000 TEU and over and emerge as the international transshiprnent port
for the Easıern Meditenanean was compieted on August 8, 2016. Thus, the berth capacity has
reached 2.6 million TEU whule the yard capacitv has reached 2.2 million TEU. Once the EMH
project is cornplete. MIP wilI be able to handle more transshipment cargo.

15



(Coovenlence translation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated fınnncial s(atements originaliy
issued in Turkislı)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Finaucial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless otherwise specifled.)

ORGANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY
(conıinıwd)

ii) Joınt Ventures (continued)

(1) JojızI veıztııres ıto! iııclııded ii, ilie <!iı’Lvioıı (con tin ued)

Akfen Yenilenebilir EnerjiA.Ş. (“Akfen Renewable Energy”,?
Under restructuring efforts for the renewable energy portfolio, the process of absorption merger for
Akfenres Rüzgar Enerjisi Yatırımları A.Ş. (“Akfen WPP), a subsidiaıy of the Company, into
AkfenHES Yatırımları ve Enerji Uretim A.Ş. (“Akfen HEPP’) completely (universally) and without
liquidation and of changing the İrade name ofAkfen HEPP to Akfen Yenilenebilir Enerji A.Ş. were
cornpleted and registered as ofianuary 19, 2016.

Under the said restructuring, the transfer of Akfen Elektrik Enerjisi Toptan Satış A.Ş. (“Akfen
Elektricity Wholesale”), a sııbsidiaıy of the Company, to Akfen Renewable Energy was completed
on January 25, 2016.

In addition to this, Laleli Enerji Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., a subsidiary of Akfen Renewable Energy,
was transferred to Akfen Termik Enerji Yatırımları A.Ş.. a subsidiary of the Company, for a fee of
ftıll TRY 6,764 on January 25, 2016.

The transaction for the Companys purchasing 100% shares of Selim Akın, Board Member nt the
Company, in Karine Enerji Uretim ve Sanayi A.Ş. (‘Karine SPP”) for a fee of USD 24,000,000 was
completed as of Febrııaıy 22, 2016. Subsequently, the process ofabsorption merger for Karine SPP
into Akfen Renewable Energy completely (universally) and without liquidation was completed and
registered as of March 9,2016.

On December 15, 2015, Akfen Holding signed a shareholders’ agreement with the EBRD worth
USD 100 million for a total of 20 percent stake in the renewable energy cornpany which vilI be
incorporated through restructuriııg by a merger of renewable energy subsidiaries, namely Akfen
HEPP, Akfen WPP, Akfen Electricity Wholesale and Karine SPP, following the transfer ofthe latter
to the Holding, under the same roof. On Jııne 23, 2016, the previous agreement signed with the
EBRD was amended, and a new agreement was signed with the EBRD and the IFC in order for
thern to become shareholders in Akfen Renewable Energy, each subscribing for 16.667% of shares
ona fee ofUSD 100 million. Following the fulflllment of closing requirernents, the capital ofAkfen
Renewable Energy was increased, on premium, to TRY 705,000 from TRY 634,500, with the EBRD
and the IFC transferring USD 44,444,444 for 5% of shares each to Akfen Renewable Energy. The
capital increase was registered on JuIy 12,2016. The share transfer agreement stipulates that Akfen
Renewable Energy be managed jointly by Akfen Holding, EBRD and IFC, and unanimous decisions
of the parties be sought in relation to operations which signiflcantly irnpact on Akfen Renewable
Energy’s returns. Therefore, Akfen Holding considered this transaction to be a sale of shares in a
subsidiary, which gives rise ton loss of control, and the equity accounting of the Company’s shares
in Akfen Renewable Energy started.

As of June 9,2017, Akfen Renewable Energy paid-in capital was increased, on premium, to TRY
793,000 from TRY 705,000, witlı the EBRD and the IFC transferring USD 55.476.752,80. Thus,
the shares of EBRD and IFC increased to 19.99% while the share of our Company was 80.01%.
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ORCANIZATİON AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS OF THE COMPANY
(coniinzwd)

ii) Joint Ventures (continued)

ü) mini ıeııiııres not iııclııdc’d i,ı the diı’isüuı (con Un ued)

HEPP ünnpanies
Through its subsidiaries. Akfen Holding has been making hydroelectric power plant investments
since Januarv 2007. As of June 30.2017. the renewabie hydroeiectric power plant portfolio ofAkfen
Holding is placed under Akfen Renewable Energy.
As oflune 30, 2017, the HEPP Companies have a tolal of 11 projects with a total instalied capacit
of 238.2 MW and an annual power generation capacity of 959.3 GWh, with generation operations
going on in 12 power piants with a total installed capucity of 2 13.0 MW and an annual power
generation capacity of $74.6 GWIı. Having a total inslailed capacity of 15.3 MW and an annual
generation capacity of 42.2 GWh. the constrııction of Çalıkobası HEPP project (the first two uniis
became operational oniune 2, 2017 and the remaining 2 units are stili under construction)under
HHK Enerji Elektrik Uretim A.Ş. and of Çiçekli 1-Il HEPP project under Kudal Elektrik Uretim
A.Ş. continues. in addition. plans are in place for a hydroelectric power plant with an installed
capacit of 10.0MW and an annual power generation capacity of 42.5 GWh.

Also, the highest bid was giyen with TRY 1 billion 250 million for operating rights of Menzelet and
Kılavıızlu hydroelectric power plants with 178 MW installed power for 49 years in the privatization
tender held on November 3,2016, but in June 2017 the tender was cancelled by OIB.

As of Jııne 30, 2017; Akfen Renewable Energy has 12 subsidiaries it owns directlv and via
companies within the same controlling structure under HEPP Companies, namely Akörenbeli
Hidroelektrik Santral Yatırımları Yapım ve İşletim A.Ş., (“Akörenbeii”). Beyobası Enerji Üretim
A.Ş. (“Beyobası”), Bt Bordo Elektrik Üretim Dağıtım Pazarlama Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Bt
Bordo”). Çamlıca Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. (“Çamlıca”), Elen Enerji Üretimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
(“Elen”). HHK Enerji Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. (“HHK”). Kurtal Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. (“Kurtal”).
Mernülü Enerji Elektrik Uretim A.Ş.. (“Memülü”). Pak Enerji Üretimi Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş.
(“Pak”). Rize İpekyolu Enerji Uretim ve Dağıtım A.Ş. (“Rize İpekvoiW’). Yeni Doruk Enerji
Elektrik Uretim A.Ş. (\‘eni Doruk”). and Zeki Enerji Elektrik Uretim Dağıtım Pazarlama Sanayi
ve Ticaret A.Ş. (“Zeki). Of these companies, Akörenbeli. Memülü and Rize lpekyolıı are sdll not
operational. HEPP projects ıınder HHK Kurtul are currently being constructed, with the HEPP
projects under Zeki being developed yet.
WPP C<nnpnnies

To establish a proper strııcture for WPP Companies, Sim-Er Enerji Üretim Sanayi ve Ticaret Ltd.
Şti. of Akfen l-lolding was transformed into Akfen WPP as of Februan’ 6, 2014. Seven special
purpose entities vere established under Akfen Renewuble Energy to erect the wind measurement
masts and carry out wind measurements. Out of the companies. which have already erected
measurements masts and started measurement activities. four vere incorporated on February 10,
2014, one on September 26, 2014 and three on August 6, 2015.

As of June 30, 2017; Akfen Renewable Energy has 16 subsidiaries it owns directly and via
companies within the same controlling structure under WPP Compunies, namely Ela RES Elektrik
Uretim A.Ş., EMD Enerji Uretim Sanayi ve Ticaret A.Ş., İmbat Enerji A.Ş., Kanat Enerji A.Ş.,
Kavança Elektrik Uretim A.Ş., Kontra Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., Kuzeybatu Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.,
Mares Elektrik Uretim A.Ş.,Nesim Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., Orçaner Elektrik UretimA.Ş., Pruva
Enerji A.Ş., Ruba Elektrik Uretim A.Ş., Seyir Elektrik Üretim A.Ş., Sisam Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.,
Trim Elektrik Uretim A.Ş. and Uçurtma Elektrik Üretim A.Ş.
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ORGANİZATİON AND NATURE OF OPER4TIONS OF THE COMPANY
(contiııııc’d)

İi) Joint Ventures (continued)

(1) Jojılı veıılures ızot inc!ııded in the dh’ision (continued>

WPP Companles (continued,)
The WPP development process has already started, with preliminaıy work for 14 projects with an
estimated installed capacity of 984 MW being completed. For these projects, applications vere filed
at the Energy Market Reguiatory Authority on April 28,2015, the paid-in capitais of the companies
were increased and lellers of guarantee vere submitted to the EMRA. 14 applications by 12
subsidiaries vere evaluated and approved by the EMRA. Within the scope ofthese projects, TEİAŞ
compieted the tender process for the total 710 MW capacity connection on 21-22-23 June 2017. No
bids have been submitted at these tenders and asa result, the development process for the four plants
with a total capacitv of 162MW has been terminated. Ten projects with a total capacity of 822 MW
are stili eligible to participate in the TEİAŞ tenders.
Furtherrnore. development work for 10 new projects bv 3 subsidiaries started under an additional
wind power generation capacity of 2,000 MW as stated by TEİAŞ. To this end, wind measurement
work currently continues. A share purchase agreement was signed on March 31,2017 regarding the
purchase ofa total of4 wind projects, three in Çanakkale and one in Denizli. alI ofwhich have 242
MW licenses and are not in operation and the purehase was completed on June 13, 2017 as the
necessary pennissions vere obtained and the preconditions vere fulflhled.

SPP Coınpunies
As of iune 30. 2017, SPP Companies continued operations with a portfolio of 151.3 MW total
installed capacity, consisting of licensed (114.7 MW) and unhicensed (20.9 MW) projects under
development in addition to 7.8MW ofunlicensed and 8MW of licensed projects (15.8MW in total)
currently operational. There are 41 project companies, with Akfen Renewable Energy holding 100%
ofshares in alI but two (Me-Se Elektrik Üretim A.Ş. (“Me-Se”) - 80%, Solentegre Enerji Yatırımları
Tie. A.Ş. (“Solentegre”) - 90%).
Ali projects by HEPP Companies fali within the scope of the Law on the Use of Renewable Energy
Resources for Power Generation. Projects falling within this scope have the right to enjoy a
purchasing guarantee by the state over 7.3 US cents/kWh for 10 years starting from the date the
project is commissioned if they obtain a Renewable Energy Resources Certificate and complete
their investments by December 31, 2020. Under the previously-stated incentive mechanism, WPP
porlfolio can benefıt a purehasing guaranıee over 7.3 VS centslkWh while the SPP portfoiio can
enjo a purchasing guararnee of 13.3 VS cents/kWh. Under the ver> same law, various domestic
contributions could be added as an incenrive ifdomestically-made equipmeni k used for generation
at the power plant. To this end, Gelinkaya HEPP, which is under Pak. one of the companies under
Akfen Renewable Energy, is eligible for an additional domestic contribution of 1.17 VS cents/kWh.

b) Joİnı veııtııres transferred by division

TA k’ Investnıeııt
Following the spin-oftprocedure of Akfen Holding on Februar>’ 16. 2017, the shares held in TAV
lnvestment vere transferred to Akfen Engineering. Therefore. TAV Investment which has been ü

joint venture of the Company in the previous periods, has ceased to be ajoint venture as of Februarv
16, 2017.
TAV lnvestment was incorporated on July 1,2005 to make investments in aviation and construction
sectors. The main flelds of business for TAV investment are construction and car park operations.
TAV lnvestment’s subsidiary is TAV Tepe Akfen Yatırım inşaat ve işletme A.Ş. (“TAy
Construction”).
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ORGANIZATION AND NATURE OF OPERATİONS OF THE COMPANY
(cü>iti,itic’d)

ii) Joint Ventures (continaed)

b) Jolıgı ventur’s Iran.sferred b;’ divtçion (continued)

TA V Jnvc’sınıeııt (continued)
TAV Construction has braneh offlces in Cairo. Egypt: Dubai and Abu Dhabi, UAE: Doha. Qatar;
leddah. Sandi Arabia and Paris. France in addition to Libya, Bahrain and Georgia. TAV
Construction has subsidiaries openting under irade names TAV Park Otopark Yatırım ve
lşietmeieri A.Ş. TAV Construction Muscat LLC. Riva İnşaat Turizm Ticaret Işletme ve Pazarlama
A.Ş. TAV Construction Qatar LEC and TAV — Alrajhi Constructions Co.. in which it has 100%,
70%, 99.99%. 49% and 50% shares, respectively. TAV Construction aiso has ordinary pannerships
named TAV Sera Adi Ortaklığı and TAV Sera Libadiye Adi Ortaklığı, ofwhich it holds 50% of the
shares eaclı.

AAfen Water
Following the spin-offprocedure ofAkfen Holding on February 16,2017, the shares heid in Akfen
Water were transferred to Akfen Engineering. Therefore. Akfen Water. a joinl venture of the
Company in the previous periods, has ceased to be ajoint venture as of Februaıy 30, 2017.
Akfen \Vater Güllük staned operations on August 24, 2006. Akfen Water Güllük cornpleted ali
relevant investments and serves 7,364 subscribers as of June 30. 20l7. Akfen Water-Arbiogaz
Dilovası was incorporated on July 19, 2007. The coınpany completed its investments on July 1,
2010 and staned operations. it continues sen’ing Diiovası district, which has an approximate
population of 40,000, via the factories and plants currently operational at Dilovası Organized
industrial Zone. Akfen Water employs new technologies in line vith the needs of its customers to
develop and manage sustainable and environmentaliy-friendiy Solid \Vaste Management systems.
Concluding its first contract on Solid Waste Services with İDO. Akfen Water provides İDO with
the sen’ices of identifıing. coliecting. sorting, temporarily storing. transporting, recovering and
disposing of hazardous and non-hazardous wastes from operations in alI vesseis, and vehicles, Iand
enterprises, offices and other port areas. Akfen Water aiso started to provide waste management
senices for City Hospitals projects run by the Republic of Turkey Ministıy of Health within a
Public-Private Partnership model. To this end, Akfen Water signed its first contract with Isparta
Şehir Hastanesi Yapım ve Işletme A.Ş. and provides the services of managing waste managernent
processes, establishing an appropriate staff structure, procuring the tools and equipment in
accordance with regulations, and following up and reporting the types and quantities of wastes.
Subsequently, Akfen Water also started to provide waste management services to Mersin Integrated
Heaith Campus and Yozgat City Hospital projects. Furthermore, it began to provide hazardous and
non-hazardous waste disposal and recycling sen’ices to MIP during 2016.
1.00
Foliowing the spin-off procedure ofAkfen Holding on February 16. 2017, the shares held in İDO
were transferred to Akfen Engineering. Therefore, IDO, a joint venture of the Company in the
previous periods, has ceased to be ajoint venture as of Februan 16. 2017.
The tender heid by Istanbul Metropolitan Mıınicipaiity (“IBB”), the former controlling shareholder
of IDO. for the block selling of IDO on June 16, 2011 was awarded to Tepe Construction, Akfen
Holding, Souter and Sera Gayrimenkul Yatırım ve İşletme A.Ş. Joint Venttıre Group. IDO carries
passengers and vehicles under the name “Sea Bus and Fast Ferıy Lines” on intracity and intercity
sea routes. Having a modern fleet of 55 vesseis (24 sea buses, 20 ferryboats, 9 fast ferries and 2
service ships), IDO carries passengers and vehicles in Marmara Sea ona totai of 16 iines comprised
of 8 sea bus lines, 3 ferryboat lines and 4 fast ferıy iines. As ofiune 30, 2017, sea buses, fast ferries
and ferıyboats have a total capacity of 36,433 passengers in summer season and 30,315 passengers
in winter season while presenting a vehicle capacity of 2,869 in both seasons.
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS

2.1 Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements

Statcment of compliance

Akfen Holding companies operating in Turkey ernploy the Uııiform Chart of Accounts as vell as
the accounting principles set by the CMB in keeping accounting records and drafting TRY
denorninated financial statements.
Akfen Holding companies operating abroad keep their accounting records and issue their fınancial
staternents in accordance with the widely-acknowledged accounting principles and legislation in the
countries they operate in.

The consolidated fınancial staternents atİached are issued in line wiih the provisions of the
“Communique on Principles Pertaining to Financial Reporting in the Capital Market’ Serial Il, No.
14.1 (‘Cornmıınique”) by the CMB, which was pubhshed in the Offıciai Gazette No. 28676 ofiune

13, 2013.
The Group applies the Turkish Accounting Standards (‘TAS’) published by the Pııblic Oversight,
Accounting and Auditing Standards Authority as per Article 5 of the Cornrnunique. The TAS is
comprised of the Turkish Financial Reporting Standards (“TFRS”) and the appendices and
comments pertaining thereto.

The consolidated fınancial statements of the Group are approved by the Cornpany’s Board of
Directors on August 18, 2017.

Principles of measurement

The consolidated fınancial staternents are issued ova historical costs except for the investment
properties recognized by their fair values.

Functional and presentation currency

Akfen Holding. its subsidiaries operating in Ttırkey and its affıliaıes underjoint control keep İheir
accounting records and financial statements in TRY in accordance with the Turkish Commercial
Code and the Tax Procedure Code. Subsidiaries and joint ventures incorporated abroad keep their
accounting records in accordance with the laws and practices of the countries they operate in The
attached consolidated fınancial statements are presented in TRY, the Company’s repoıting currency.
and are issııed in accordance with the TAS by taking legal accounting records as basis and creating
the required adjııstment and classifıcation records.
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2 BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation of Financial Statemcnts (continucd)

As oflune 30, 2017 and December3l, 2016. the applicable curreneles forihe subsidiaries andjoint
ventures are as foliows:

Companv Functional Currenev
Akfen REİT (*) TaY
Akfen Thermal Energy TaY
Akfen Renewable Energy TRY
TAV Airports EUR
TAV lnvestment USD
MIP USD
PSA Akfen Liman İşletme ve Yönetim Danışmanlığı A.Ş. TRY
Akfen Water TRY
IDO TRY

(*) Asa result of spin-off on Februaıy 16, 2017, income and expenses belonging to Akfen REIT is shown
under the discontinued operations.

BaSİS for consolidation

The attached consolidated tinancial statements, which are alI prepared in consistence with the
principles set in the consolidated financial staternents for the accounting period that ended on 30
June 2017, December 31, 2016 and June 30, 2016, include the accounts for investments in equity
accounted joint ventures by Akfen Holding, the parent company, and its subsidiaries that are
consolidated via the fiili consolidation method.

As a result of the spin-off procedures on Februaıy 16, 2017. Companies’, which was transferred to
Akfen Engineering, proFıt or loss and other comprehensive income items which is realized up to the
date of transfer. was ineluded in the consolidated (‘inancInI statements as nt and period ended June
30, 2017.

Subsidiaries and joint ventures are consolidated using the following methods:

Subsidiark’s

Ifthe Group has the authorit) to exercise more than 50% of iıs voting rights in companies asa result
of the shares it holds directly and/or indirectly or if, although it does not have the power to exercise
more ilhan 50% of votes. it has the power and authority to control the fınancial and operational
policies in line with the Group’s interests by exercising its actual control impact on financial and
operational policies, the company concerned is then included in consolidation.
The rates for shareholding and voting rights of the subsidiaries subject to consolidation as of June
30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are as follows:

kkfen Iloldin ¾
DirccI and indireci Voling righls of

‘ voling righls ofAkkn members olAkın Tolal voling righls M,iinsharcholdıng rale -ıııııdıng Famıly Operatıons
.Iune 30, Decemher .Iııne 30, Decemher .Iune 30, December June 30, Decemher

2017 31,2016 2017 31, 2016 2017 31, 2016 2017 31. 2016
Real estate

Akfcn REIT (9 — 56.88 -- 56.88 -- 16.41 -- 73.29 nvestment
Akfcn Thermal Power
(9 -. 99.64 -- 99.64 -- 0.36 --

Energy

(9 Following the spin-offprocedure of Akfrn Holding on Februan 16. 2017, the shares ha/d in AŞkiz Jl’aıer ırere
tranşfkrred to .-I/fen Engineering.

in the consolidated financial statements, the interests corresponding to the shares held by Akın
Family are indicated within the non-controlling interests.

21



Sharcholding Vuang righı Shareholding Voting rigUl
rate (%) rate (%) rale (%) raw (‘Ö)

8.12 8.12 8.12 812
Main operation
Airport Management
Inesıment. construcüon

21.68 and manugement in avialion
50.00 Seaport Management

Constructinn and
Management of Water

50.00 Treatment Plants

TAV Airpons

TAV Invesımenı (*) 21.68
Mİl’ 50.00 50.00 50.00

Akfen Water <.) -- 50.00
Akfen Renc’ahle Energy

801)1 80.01 90.00 90.00 Enerry
İDO (fl -- -- 30.00 30.00 Marine Transpnnation

* Fo//owing the spin—ofJprocedure ofALjL’ıı Holding on Febnwn’ /6, 2017. the shares hc/d in TA t Invesııne’zt.Akfrn
Ilater and IDO ıı’ere transJerred tv :1/fen Enginecring

( ) Vote / 1.

Co,ııbinatioııs of b ııüı CSSL’s underjoint coıılroİ
Business combinations arising from the transfer of the shares ofcompanies under the control of the
sharehoider that controls the Group are recognized ilke they took place at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period offered, and, if it took place later. on the date the joint control is
estabiished. To this end, comparative periods are restated. Acquired assets and Iiabiiities are
recorded over the carrying amount registered in the consolidated financial statements of the
shareholders under the Group’s control. The sharehoiders’ equity items for the acquired companies
are added 10 the same items in the Group’s equity except for the capital and the resulting profit or
ioss is recognized within equiw.

ıl <!jıısınwnı traıısactivns in coııso(idaıion

Intra-group transactions and balances among the companies included in the consolidation are
written offduring consolidation. Unrealized profıts and losses arising from transactions between the
company and its consolidated subsidiaries and joint ventures are adjusted to the extent of the Group’s
share in thejoint venture.

(Convenience (ranslation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated fınancial sta(ements originaliv
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) uniess otherwise specifıed.)

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF CONSOUDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(coıuinued)

2.1 Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements (conflnued)

Joiıı( agreeıtwnts
Joint ventures are established through an agreernent for the Company and its subsidiaries to
undertake an econornic activity in a vay to bejointly managed by one or more enterprising partners.
The “TFRS Il Joint Agreernents” standard, which entered into force for application to annual
accounting periods starting on or afler Ianuary 1,2013 and repealed the TAS 31 Shares in Joint
Ventures” standard. stipulates the accounting of shares in joint ventures with the equity method as
per “TAS 28 lnvestrnents in Afflhiates and Joint Ventures” standard,
in the equity method. the joint venture investrnent is initiaily recognized via the acquisition cost.
Following the date of acqııisition, the share of the investor in the proflts or losses of the invested
enterprise k reflected in the financial statements by increasing or decreasing the carıying arnount of
the inveslment. The share the investor wili get frorn the proflts or iosses of the invested enterprise
is recognized as the profit or ioss of the investor. Any distributions (of dividend, etc.) received frorn
an invested enterprise reduce the carıying amount of the investment. The carrying arnount of the
invested enterprise needs to be adjusted in a vay to correspond to the share the investor gets frorn
the changes in the other cornprehensive income of the enterprise. The details of the Company’s direct
joint ventures as of June 30,2017 and December 31,20! 6 are as foilows:

June 30. 2017 December 31. 2016



(Convenience translation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidaled financial statements originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As af and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Alt amounts are in thousand Tuvkish Liras (“TRY’) unless othenvise specifled.)

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(coniinıted)

2.1 Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements (continned)

Bıısiııess coınbbuıtioısfor pıırclıasingfroın thirdpersoııs

Pıırchasing frorn third persons are recognized by using the purchasing method. Purehasing cost 15
calculated as the total of the fair values of assets, of the liabilities that arise or are assurned, and of
the equin capital instruments issued to acquire the control of the affiliate as veII as the total ofother
costs directly aitribLıtable to acquisition. in accordance with TFRS 3. identifiable assets. liabilities
and conditional Iiabilities which meet the registration requirements are registered over Iheir fair
values.

Foreign currency

Foreign curreııcy (raıısactioııs

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currencies of the relevant Group
cornpanies over the exchange rate on the date when the transaction took place. Foreign curreney
denominated monetary assets and Iiabilities are translated into the functional currency over the
exchange rate on the reporting date. Foreign currency-denominated non-monetary assets and
liabilitles that could be measured by their historical costs are translated over the exchange rate on
the transaction date. Exchange differences due to translation are recorded in the consolidated otlıer
comprehensive income statement.

Group companies prefer to use USD. EUR or TRY as the functional currency since tlıey are widely
used or have ü significant impact on the operations ofihe relevant Group companies and reflect the
key econornic events and developrnents peflaining to such companies. Ali currencies except for the
currency used to measure the items in financial statements are called a foreign currency. As per the
relevant provisions of TAS 21 (Effecıs of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates) standard.
transactions and bafances not calculated over the functional cıırrencies are re-calcıılated over the
relevant currencies. The Group adopts TRY as the reporting cıırency.

The assets and Iiabilities of Group companies that empioy a functionai currency other than the
Group’s repofling currency are ıransiated into the Group’s reporting currency over the exchange rate
on the balance sheet date. The income and expenditures or sııch Group companies are translated
into the reporting currency over the average exchange rate for the period. Equity capital items are
reporıed over their cost value. Foreign currency translation differences are indicated in the equity
capital under the item “Foreign curreney transiation difference”. When the relevant Group
companies are disposed of partialiy or fulIy, the reievant arnount ıınder “foreign currency translation
difference” is classified into consolidated profıt or loss.
End-of-period exchange rates and average exchange rates as of iune 30, 20Y7 and December 31,
2016 are as follows:

Average Eıchange Rate Exchange Rate nt Period end
June3O, December June3O, Dccember3l,

2017 31,2016 2017 2016
USD 3.6356 2.9181 3.5071 3.5192
EUR 3.9385 3.2558 4.0030 3.7099
Georgian Lari (“GEL”) 1.4483 1.2564 1.4586 1.3278
Macedonian Denar (“MKD”) 0.0637 0.0527 0.0649 0.0605
Tunisian Dinar (‘TND”) 1.5384 1.4215 1.4430 1.5266
Saudi Riyal (“SAR”) 0.9691 0.7781 0.9352 0.9386
Croatian Kuna (“1-IRK”) 0.5296 0.4304 0.5421 0.4923
Russian Ruble (“RUB”) 0.0630 0.0416 0.0591 0.0573
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(Convenience rıınslatinn of the indcpendent auditers’ report and consulidated linancial statcments uriginaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless otherwise specifled.)

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF CONSOLIDATED FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
(conlinııc’d)

2.1 Basis of Presentation of Financial Statements (conflmıed)
Foreign Currency (continned)

Foreigıı operuhiinıs

Assets and liabiiities from operations abroad inciuding fair value adjustments due to acquisition as
veli as goodwili are translated into TRY over the exehange rates on the reporting date. income and
expenditures from operations abroad are translated into TRY over the average rates for the relevant
period.
Foreign currency translation differences are recorded under foreign currency transiation differences
under equity. in the event that operations abroad are sold out partialiy or fully, the relevant amount
in the foreign currency transiation difference is transferred to the profit or Ioss.

Comparative information and the adjustment of consolidated financiai statemcnts from
previous periods

The attached consolidated financial stateinenis are compared to the previous period in order to
identil trends in the financial position, performance and cash flow of the Group. in order to ensure
comparabiliry if the vay the iterns in the consolidated financial staternents are represented or
ciassifled ciıanges, consolidated financial staternents from the previous periods are also re-ciassifled
accordingly and explanations are provided on such ınatters.

Res!cııenıeıı!s in 201 6Jinancial stalenıeıı!s

Re-ciassifications and restaternents in the Groups profit/ioss statements for the period ending on
June 30, 2016 are explained in Note 3.

2.2 Summary of Signifıcant Accounting Policies
The interim condensed consolidated financial statements for the period ended June 30, 2017 have
been prepared in accordance wiih TAS 34.
The accounting policies used in the preparation of tlıese interim condensed consolidated financial
statements for the period ended 30 June 2017 are consistent with those used in the preparation of
annual consohdated fınancial staternents for the year ended 31 December 2016. Accordinglv. these
interim condensed consolidated financial statements should be read ili conjunction with the annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2016.
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(Canvenicnce transiation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated fınancial statcments originaliy
issucd in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As al and For the Six Month Period Ended hac 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (TRY”) unless otherwise specifıed.)

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATİON OF CONSOLIDATED FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(continned)

2.3 Amcndments to the Turkish Financial Reporting Standards
Accounting policies taken as basis for the preparation of consolidated financial statements for the
accounting period of Januan’ 1 - December 31, 2017 are applied in consistence with the flnancial
statements prepared as ofiune 30, 2017 except for the new and arnended TASTFFRS standards stated
below which are valid as ofianuaıy 1,2017 and the interpretations of the Turkish Financial Reponing
lnterpretation Comrninee (“TFRYK”).
S(aıdards, anıendıneııt (111(1 iıııproveııeııts issııed but ıgot jet effective mal ,m! eurly udopted:

Neu’ sıa;zdards, aIfle;?dflWntS and iıuerpre(alions (hat an’ ısszıed bv the Internationcil Accoun(ing
Sıcındard Boards (JASB) but not issııed by POA:

- TFRS 10 and TAS 28- Sale or Contribution ofAssets Between an Investor and lis Associate
or Joint Venture - Amendments

Annual Jmprovenwnts — 2010—2012:

- TFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurernent
- TFRS 1 6 - Leases Arnendrnents
- TAS 12 — Incorne Taxes Amendrnents
- TAS 7 - Statement of Cash FIow Amendments
- TFRS 2 - Share-based Payment Amendments
- TFRS 17— New Insurance Contracis Standards
- TFRS 4 — Insurance Contract Amendrnents
- TAS 40— Investrnent Propeny Amendments
- TFRS Cornrnittee 22— Foreign Currency Transaction and Advance Consideration
- TFRS Annual lmprovernents—2014-2016
- IFRIC 23 Uncerıainw over Income Tax Treatments
- TFRS 17— \ew Insurance Contracts Standards

The potential impact of the said standards, arnendrnents and improvements on the Grotıp’s fınancial
position and performance is assessed.
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(Coovenicoce translation of the independent nuditors’ report and consolidated fınancial statements originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in tlıousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) uniess othenvise specifled.)

3 RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUS YEAR FİNANCİAL STATEMENTS
Reference A — Those amoıınts wiihin the non-capitalized exchange rate differences pertaining to
the Ioans Akfen Renewabie Energy utilized in the past for its investments İhat couid be capitalized
as per the TAS 23 Borrowing Cost standard are recognized in the tangibie fixed assets account.
Furtherrnore, the aınounts which Akfen Renewable Energy is liable to pay as per the pıırchasing
contracts of some of its plants but it has not paid yet are recognized mulualiy in intangibie fixed
assets and other payables accounts.

Adjustments for prior period- Akfen REIT which is assets and liabilities vere transferred to Akfen
Engineering as of Febrııaıy 16, 2017, and are considered as a separate segrnent, are indicated under
discontinued operations as ofiııne 30,2016. As per TFRS 5 - Non-Current Assets 1-leid for Sale and
Discontinued Operations, Akfen REITs profıt and Ioss statement iterns for the previous period are
also classifıed comparatively under discontinued operations.

Pre ı’imı.çlı’
repflrtL’<I JUUL’ 30,

2016
tl diıısmıcqıts (<ir

prior period
ResIoIL’nL’ııts Restofed Jiine 30,

(Reğ’erence A) 2016

GROSS I’ROFIT

General adıninistrative epenseS (-)
Olber incorne fiom operating activities
OIlıer expenses frorn operating activiıies(—)
Share ol prolitl(Ioss) from investrnents

accounted using ilie equity method
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) roı
OPEILVFING ACUIVIlIES

Income from invesiing activities
Expense from invesling activilies
PROFIT IIEFORE FINANCING

INCONIEI( EXPENSES)

Finance incorne
Finance expenses
PROFIT/(LOSS) HEFORE TAX FRO’%I
CONTINIFING OPERATİONS

Tax (Epense) Inçome, Coniinuing Operalions
Current period tax expenses
Defened tax income
PROFIT/(LOSS) CONTINUING
OPERATIONS

PROFITI(LOSS) AFİER TAN FOR ThE PERİOD
EROM DISCONTINLED
OPER4TIONS

Period (loss)/profıt from discontinued
operations

PROFITİ(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD
ArrEn DISCONTINUED
OPERATİONS

Attributnhle to non-controlling inleresis
Non-controllinu interests
Equity holders of the parent
Net ProflI / (Lou) for the Period

88,319 (21,943) (915) 65,461

(46,548) 4,277 26 (42,245)
4.513 (85) (8) 4,420

(1,411) 1,114 (18) (315)

66.178 -- -- 66.178

111,051 (16,637) (915) 93,499

498 -- — 498
(29.917) -- -- (29.947)

81,602 (16,637) (915) 64,054)

64,079 (8,929) (102) 55,048
(97.044) 13,770 177 (83,097)

48,637 (11,796) (830) 36,001

(6,781) 5,651) (373) (1,604)
(2,950) -- -- (2,950)
(3.831) 5.650 (473) 1.346

41.856 (6,146) (1,313) 34397

-- 6,146 -- 6,146

41,856 — (1313) 40,543

2,777 -- 8 2,785
39.079 -- (1,321) 37.758
31,856 — (1313) 40,543

Revenuc 157,161 (26,137) -- 131,024
(‘ost of sales (-) (68.832) 4.194 (915) (65.563)
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(Convenience translation of the independent auditors’ report and cunsolidated financial statcments originaliv
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in ıhousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless othenvise specifled,)

3 RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUS YEAR FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(continued)

Previozıs1’
reporled

ılpri! 1—
izine 30. 2016

.1 lIjiiSt?IIL’IIIV for
prior petitu!

Reslalegi
Rtiae,neızF.ç .4pril 1 —

(Reference .4) Jane 30, 2016

C.ROSS PROFIT

General adrninislralivc cxpenses (-)
Other incorne from opcra6ng activilics
Other cxpenses frorn operatına activilies(-)
Share of proühJ(Ioss) from investments

accounted using ıhe cquıty method
OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) FRONI
Ol’ERA’IING AC’ll\’ITIES

lncorne fronı invesling activities
Epense from invcsıing activities
I’ROFIT I3EFORE FINANCING
INCONIEI(EXl’ENSES)

Finance ıncorne
Finance expenses
PROFIIV(LOSS) I3EFORE ‘I’AX FROM
CONTINL’ING OPERATIONS

Tax (Expense) Income, Continuing
Operations
Currcnt perod sax expenscs
Deferred tax incorne
I’ROFIT/(LOSS) CONTINIIING
OPERATIONS

PROFFF/(LOSS) Al’]ER TAX FOR THE
I’ERIOD FROM DISCONTINUED
OPERATİONS

Period (loss)/protit fronı discontinued
oper’dtions

PROFIT/(LOSS) FOR THE PERIOD
AFTER DISCON’FINUED
OPER-UIONS

Attribuiahle İi> nun-controlling inlerests
Non-cuntrollina inlc,ests
Equit holders of the parent
Net Prorit / (Loss) for the Period

46.649 (11330) (467) 34852

(15,539) 2,454 20 (13.065)
1,353 (56) 2,450 3.747

(1,110) 1.020 ( 18) (108)

14.057 -- -- 14,057

45,410 (7.912) 1,985 39,483

72 -- -- 72
(29,947) -- -- (29.947)

15.535 (7,912) 1.985 9.608

15.59$ (2.236) 2.126 15.48$
(48,963) (136) (989) (50.068)

(17.830) (10.283) 3.122 (23.992)

1.330 2,416 (834) 2.912
(1,980) -- -- (1.980)

3.310 2,416 (834) 4.892

(16,500) (7.868) 2.288 (22,080)

-- 7,868 -- 7,868

(16.500) — 2.288 (13.212)

2.143 — 3 2.146
(18.643) -. 2.285 (16.35%)
(16.500) — 2288 (14212)

Revenuc %2.131 (13.529) (6) 68.596
Cost of sales (-) (35.482) 2,199 (461) (33,744)
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(Convenience translation of the independcnt auditors’ report and consolidated fınancial statements originally
issued in Turkislı)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As nt and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) uniess otherwise specifled.)

3 RESTATEMENT OF PREVIOUS YEAR FINANCİAL STATEMENTS
(‘conti,ıued,.)

Due to the restated above, the cash flow statement for the year ended inne 30. 2016 is restated.

Pn’vioıısh’ Read/ııstıne,ıt
reported and Restated
Jane 30, Adinstnwııts conıhinatian Jane 30,

2016 for prior peri,,gI impact 2016
(Loss)!profll from continued operations 41.856 (6.146) (1.313) 34.397
Loss Ibm disconıinued operations

— 6.136 — 6.136
Caslı FIows from nıanagcment operations 68,290 — 13.083 81373
Net cash flows from investment operntions (17,135) — (16,298) (33.433)
Net cash used in fınancing operations (51,610) — 3,215 (54.395)
Net increase/(decrease) in taçlı and caslı
equivnlents (6,455) — — (6,455)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the
period 22,424 -- -- 22.424
Cash and cash equivalcnts at the end of the period 15.969 -- -- 15.969

4 SEGMENT REPORTING
On Februaıy 16. 2017, foliowing Akfen Thermal Energv, 1Q9 Akfen Water. Tay investrnenl.
Akfen REİT. Adana ipekyolu. Akfen Enerji Gaz, Akfen Enerji Uretim. Akfen Rüzgar Enerji, Akfen
Karaköy, Akfen Su Güllük, Akfensu-Aribogaz Dilovası, Akfen Güneş Enerji ve Ratı Karadeniz
EIk.Dağ.Ve Sis.A.Ş. transfer and on December 26, 2016 following Akfen Energy Distribution
transfer to Akfen Engineering, ali companies were de-recognized from consolidation together with
ali tlıeir subsidiaries and afühiates as ofiune 30, 2017. However, since these transfer transactions
were cornpieted as of Februay 16, 2017, profit or Ioss and other coınprehensive incorne items which
vere realized up to the date of transfer. vere ineluded in the consolidated flnancial staternents.
According to TERS 5, Akfen REIT’s income and expenses are ciassifled under discontinued
operations in fınancial statements. TAV investment, Akfen Water and IDO’s profit and ioss
statement items are shown under Share of Ioss from investments accounted using the equity method.
Akfen Therrnal Energy’s profir and loss was included consolidated financial statements with fiili
consolidation method.

As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31,2016, the results of al! companies inciuded in consolidation
are presented in the following tables based on income and expense items. Consolidation adjustrnents
and ciassiflcations ofjoint ventures accounted using the equity method in accordance witfi the
reporting standards as weli as of the companies shown in the income and expense items discontinued
operations are also presented in the following tables.
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5 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The details for cash and cash equivalents as ofJune 30, 2017 and December 31,2016 are as follows:

June 30, Deccmbcr 31,
2017 2016

Cashonhand 214 150
Banks 1,591 45,982

-Deınwıddcposiıs 737 3209
-Timt’ deposiis 857 42,773

Other eash and cash equivalents 5
Cash and cash equivalents 1,813 46,132

As M June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the distribution of demand deposiis, foreign curreney
and Turkish Lira of the Group is as follows:

June 30, December 31,
Currency 2017 2016
TRY 466 794
USD 166 2,229
EUR 105 186

737 3,209

As at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016. the details of time deposits, maturities and interest
rates for the Group are as follows:

Currencv Maturiiv Interest rate % June 30, 2017
EUR JuIy 2017 0.30 5
TRY Ju1y20I7 10.94-12 852

857

Currency Maturih Interest rate <‘1° December 31. 2016
EUR January 2017 0.01 — 1.95 42.648
TRY ianuary2ol7 11.16 125

42,773

The cunency and interest rate risks and sensitivitv anaiyses pertaining to the financial assets and
Iiabilities of the Group are provided in Note 29. As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31,2016, the
Group has no blocked cash in cash and cash eguivalents.
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6 FINANCİAL INVESTMENTS

Short-term financial investments
As al Jııne 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 short-lerm fınancial investınents
Groups restricted bank deposits:

Currency
USD

June 30,
1017

60.729

60,729

are comprised of the

December 31,
,o1

60.93 8

60,938

7 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM BORROWING

This fooınote includes information on the conlractuai terrns oF financial borrowings İhat are
measured in line with the discounted cost method. The inlerest, foreign currency and liquidiıy risks
as weli sensitivity analyses of the Group are provided in Noİe 27.
As al June 30, 2017, the delails of the Groups flnanciai liabliilles are as foliows:

Short-term financial liabilities Nominal Value Carn’in2
Short-lerrn collateraiized bank loans 4,500 4.502

4.5024,500

Shortterm portion of Iong-term financialliabiiities
Shon lerııı portion of iong-term coiiateralized bank loans 584.180 604,629
Shonlenıı ponion of iong-term bonds 60,000 124.390

644,180 729,019

Long-term fınancial liabiiitics
Long-terrn coliateraiized bank Ioans 94,071 90,630
Long-term bonds 450,360 397,257

544,431 487,887

As at December 31,2016, the details of the Group’s Fınancial liabilities are as follows:
Short-tcrm fınancial Iiabilities Nominal Valuc Carn1n
Short-ıerrn collateraiized bank Ioans 4,500 4,504

4.500 4,504

Short term portion of long-term fınanciai iiabilities
Short term portion of long-İerm colialeralized bank ioans 455,793 473,990
Shori lerm portion of iong-term bonds 400,000 410,971

855,793 884,961

Long-term financial liabilities
Long-term collaleralized bank Ioans 208,274 20 1,430

208,274 201,430

As of June 30, 2017, totai liabilities of the Group consisting ofbank ioans and issued bonds are as
fol lows:

Nominal Value CarrvinE Amount
Bank loans 682,751 699,762

Bond 510,360 521,646

1,193,111 1,221,408
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7 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (continued)

As of December 3!, 2016, total liabilities of the Groııp consisting of bank loans and isstıed bonds
are as follows:

(*) These are the interest rates paid for floating-interest loans in addition 10 the Euribor, Libor and Benchmark Interest at
June 30, 2017 and December 31,2016.

Bank loans
Nominal Valuc Carnin Amount

668,567 679,924
Bond 400,000 410,971

1,068,567 1,090,895

The repayment schedule for the Gronps bank loans and ssued bonds in accordance with their
original maturitles as ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31, 20! 6 is as follows:

Nominal Valuc Carniıw Amount
June 30, Dccember 31, June 30, December 31,

2017 2016 2017 2016
Less than a year 648,680 860,293 733,521 889,465
1 to 2 years 78,659 208,274 1 3 1,900 201 ,43 0
2 to 3 years 465,772 -- 355,987 --

1,193,111 1,068,567 1,221,408 1,090,895
Terms and repayment schedules
As of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the breakdown
foreign currencies is as follows:

Nominal Valuc
.June 30. December 31.

2017 2016
TRY 514,86! 404.500
EUR 394,175 370,693
USD 293.374

of bank loans and issued bonds for

Carning Amount
June 30. December 31.

2017 2016
526,148 415,475
400.247
295,0 13284.075

1,193,111 1,068,567 1,221,408 1,090,895

interest rate risk. As ofiune 30,2017 and December 31,
rates for the loans the Company utilized are as follows:

Most of the fınancial payables are Hoating-interest Ioans. a factor that exposes the Group to an

3 74.653

300.767

2016, the minimum and maximum interest

June 30. 2017(A) December 31. 2016(A)

Fixed
Fixed-Interest LLS. Interest U.S.
Loans TRY Dollar EUR Loans TRY Dollar EUR
Minimum 15.70% 3.75% 3.80% Minimum 14.00% 3.75% 3.80%
Maximum 15.70% 5.60% 6.55% Maximum 14.00% 6.00% 5.50%

Floating
Floaüng-Interest U.S. Interest U.S.
Loans TRY Dollar EUR Loans TRY Dollar EUR
Minimum 3.00% 5.25% 5.50% Minimum 3.00% 5.25% 5.50%
Maximum 4.50% 5.25% 5.50% Maximum 3.50% 5.25% 5.50%
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7 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (‘coııthıued)

As ofiııne 30, 2017. the detaiis of fınancial liabilitles are as follows:
Nominal
Interest Nominal Carrying

Currencv rate Maturitv valuc amoun(
Collateralized bankloans°> USD Lihor+ 5.25 2017 10.521 10.769

Collateralized bank loans1” USD 5.6 2017 21.043 21.105

Collateralized bank Ioans’’> USD 3.75 2017 175.355 185.359

Collateralized bank Inans’’> USD 3.5 2017 24.550 21.551

Collaıeralizcd hank loans’” USD 5 2018 52.606 52.929

Collateralized bank loans”> EUR 4.6 2017 60.035 60.669

Collateralized bank Ioans’° EUR Euribor—5.50 2017 24.018 24,110

Collateralized bank loans’’> EUR 1.75 2017 17.613 18.266

Collateralized bank Ioans’’> EUR 5.1 2017 34.826 36.084

Collateralized bank Ioans’’’ EUR 4.15 2018 70.053 71,042

Collateralized bank loans’’> EUR 4 201% 13.290 13.337

Collateralized bank loans>’’ EUR 3.8 2018 28.021 28.533

Collateralized bank loans>” EUR 5.5 2018 35.226 35.958

Collateralized hank Ioans’” EUR 3.6 2018 64.819 65.358

Collateralized bank loans>” EUR 6.55 2020 46.235 46.890

Collaterahzed hanL loans’” TRY 15.70 2017 4.500 4.502

GDDS(*) +

Bond’2’ TRY 3.0<) 2017 60.000 60.511
GDDS() +

Bond’> TRY 3.50 2020 300.000 310.447
GDDSfl+

bond’4’ TRY 4.50 2020 150.360 150.688
1,193,111 1,221,408

<‘tThe collateral of this is the surety of Akfen Construction.
(?>This indicates the liability arising from the issuance of floating-rate bond in the amount of TRY 60,000 on
December 11,2014 ona 3-year maturity with a quarterly coupon payment. The date for the coupon payment
for period Il is October 7, 2017. in line with the additional yield rate fınalized, the coupon interest to be
allocated in relation to the coupon payment period Il is 3.37%.
3>This indicates the liability arising from the issuance of floating-rate bond in the amount of TRY 300,000

on ianuary 9, 2017 on a 3-year maturity with a quarterly coupon payment. The date for the coupon payment
for period 2 is JuIy 10,2017. In line with the additional yield rate fınalized, the coupon interest to be allocated
in relation to the coupon payment period 1 ü 3.84%.
t3)This indicates the liability arising from the issuance of floating-rate bond in the amount ofTRY 150,360
on March 23, 2017 ona 3-year maturity with a quarterly coupon payment. The date for the coupon payment
for period 2 is October 21, 2017. In tine with the additional yield rate fınalized, the coupon interest to be
allocated in relation to the coupon payment period 1 is 3.7594%.
<>The “Benchmark Interest” rate ofGovernment Domestic Debt Securities (“GDDS”) bonds that sets the basis
for annual compound rate of retum is calculated as the weighted arithmeıic mean of weighted average annual
compound interest rates arising in BİAŞ Outright Purchases and Sales Market for Bonds and Securitles within
the last three working days for the discounted benchmark govemment bond that is issued by the Republic of
Turkey Undersecretariat of Treasuıy (“Treasury”) and has the highest number of days to maturity.
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7 SHORT-TERM AND LONG-TERM BORROWINGS (‘continued)

As of December 3!, 2016. the details of financial Iiabilities are as follows:

Nominal Nominal Carrving
Currencv Interest rate Maturitv valuc amount

CollateraIi7ed bank loans’’’ USD 6.00 2017 50,549 50,593

Collatcralizd hank Ioans>’ USD 3.75 2017 175,960 182.455
Cullateralized bank !oans>D USD 4.50 2017 24,634 24.642
Cottatcr.ılized haak kvansUi USD Libor±5.25 20!? 21,! 15 21,599
Collateralized bank Ioans>>> USD 5.60 2017 21,1! 5 21,479
Collateralized bank loans>1> EUR 5.! 2017 32,276 32,577
Collateralized bank Ioans<2> EUR Euribort5.50 2017 33,389 33,523
Collateralized hank Ioans>> EUR 4.75 2017 16,324 16,526
Collateralized bank Ioans’> EUR 4.60 2017 55,649 56,234
Co!Iaıcra!izcd bank Ioans<> EUR 4.6 2018 60,100 60,572
Collateralized bank Ioans<2> EUR 4.15 2018 64,923 65,848
Collaıera!izcd bank Ioans> EUR 4.00 2018 24,708 24,793
Collateralized bank Ioans<> EUR 4.70 2018 24,708 24,769
Collateralized bank Ioans<2> EUR 3.80 2018 25,969 26,458
Collateralized bank loans<2> EUR 5.50 2018 32,648 33,352
Collateralized bank loans<2> TRY 14.00 2017 4,500 4,504
Dond<1> TRY GDDS()+3.25 2017 140,000 143,677
Bond<1> TRY GDDS(’) + 3.50 2017 200,000 206,765
Bond TRY GDDS() + 3.00 20! 7 60,000 60,529

l,06S,567 1,090,895

‘tThe collateral ofthis is Akfen Holding shares heid by Hamdi Akın.
2t The collateral ofthis is the surety of Akfen Construction.
t3tThis indicates the liabiliiy arising [rom the issuance of floating-rate bond in the amount of TRY 140,606
on Januarv 13, 2014 ona 3-year maturity with a quanerly coupon pavment. The date for the coupon payment
for period 12 k ianuary 9, 2017. in line with the addiıiona! yield rate fınalized, the coupon interest to be
allocated in relation to the coupon payment period 12 is 2.88%.

4> This indicates the !iability arising from the issuance of floaıing-raıe bond in the amount of TRY 200,000
on March 27, 20! 4 on a 3-year maturity with a semi-annual coupon payment. The date for the coupon payment
for period 6 is March 23, 2017. la line with the additional yield rate finalized, the coupon interest to be
allocated in relation to the coupon payment period 6 is 6.09%.
t5> This indicates the !iabi!ity arising from the issuance of floating-rate bond in the amount of TRY 60,000 on
December 11,2014 on a 3-year maturity with a quanerly coupon payment. The date for the coupon payment
for period 9 is March 9,2017. In line with the additional vield rate finalized. the coupon interest to be allocated
in relation to the coupon pavment period 9 k 3.34%.

<(The “Benchmark interest” rate of Govemment Domestic Debt Securities (“GDDS”) bonds that sets the basis
for annual compound rate of retum is calculated as the weighted arithmetic mean of weighted average annual
compound interest rates arising in BİAŞ Outright Purchases and Sales Market for Bonds and Securities within
the last three working days for the discounted benchmark govemment bond that is issued by ıhe Republic of
Turkey Undersecretariat of Treasury (“Treasury”) and has the highest number of days to maturiıy.
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8 TRADE PAYABLES

Short-tcrm trade payables

The shorl-terrn İrade payables of the Group as of June 30, 2017 and December 3!, 2016 are as
fol Iows:

June 30, December 31,
2017 2016

Trade pavables due to related parties (Note 28) 1,172 1,0 19
Trade payables due to İhirdparties 363 1,717

1,535 2,736

As of June 30. 2017 and December 31, 2016. İrade payables due from İhird parties are cornprised
of the following items:

June 30, December 31,
2017 2016

Custorners 363 1,717
363 1,717

Foreign currency and Iiquidity risk exposure of İrade payables of the Groııp is explained in Note 29.

As at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016. the repayrnent sehedule for short-terrn trade payables
of the Group to third parties is as follows:

June 30, December 31.
2017 2016

0-3 months rnaturity 234 1.588
3 months - 1 year maturity 129 1 29

363 1,717
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9 OTHER RECEİVABLES AND PAYABLES

Othcr short-term receivables

comprised of the

June 30, Decemher 31,
2017

71 5,611

As of June 30, 2017 and December 3!, 2016, other slıort-term receivables are
following items:

Other receivables due frorn related parties (Note 28)
Other receivables due from third parıies 93 --

164 5,611

Other Iong-term receivables

The other Iong-tenn receivables of the Group as ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31. 2016 are as
follows:

,June 30. December 31,
2017 2016

Other receivables due from related parties (Note 28) 61 1,500 40 1,092
Other receivables due frorn third parties 6 267

611,506 401,359

Other short-term payables
The other short-term payables of the Group as ofiune 30, 2017 and December 3!, 2016 are as
fo Il ows:

.İunc 30, December 31,
2017 2016

Other pavables to related parties (Sok 28) 2! --

Other payables to third parties 3,498 2,298
3,519 2,298

As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31. 2016, other payables to third parties cornprise the following
items:

June 30, December 31.
2017 2016

Tax payables 3.498 2,298
3,498 2,298

Other Iong-term payables

June 30, December 31,
2017 2016

Other payables to related parties (Note 28) 1 1,524 10,581

11,524 10,581
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10 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATİONS
Asa resulı of the sales contract signed by Akfen Holding for sale of 8.119% shares ofTAV Airports
to Tank OWA Aipha GmbH on 9 June 2017, alI assets ofTAV Airports amounting to TRY 253,296
are shown under assets held for sale in the consolidated financial staternents as ofiune 30, 2017.
Based on the resolutions dated June 1, 2016 and June 20, 2016 by the Board of Directors, it was
decided to be determined whetlıer it would be convenient to split the shares of Akfen Tlıermal
Energy. İDO. Akfen Water. TAV lnvestment, Akfen REİT, Adana ipekyolu. Akfen Energy Gas,
Akfen Power Generation. Akfen Wind Power, Akfen Karaköy, Akfen Water Güllük. Akfensu
Arbiogaz Dilovası. Akfen Solar Power and Batı Karadeniz EIk. Dağ. Ve Sis. A.Ş. and be invested
as in-kind capital in Akfen Engineering. The process of publishing a notice regarding the procedure
ofspin-offbased on such resolution as per Artlele 174 of the Turkish Commercial Code was staned.
The process was cornpieted when the General Assembly resolutions ıvere approved and registered
on Februan’ 16, 2017.
Therefore. as of December 31, 2016, alI assets pertaining to Akfen REIT, Akfen Thermal Power.
TAV Investrnent. Akfen Water and İDO are indicated under assets held for sale and alI Iiabilities
thereofare indicated ıınder liabilities on assets held for sale. Furthermore. the carıying arnounts of
Akfen REIT and TAV Investrnent are reduced by TRY 351.384 since their net asset valııes canied
forward are higher than their contributory values due to the fact that
be transferred over the contributory values in statutoıy records.

As of December 31, 2016. assets heid for sale are as follows:

the relevant partnerships would

ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and cash equivaients
irade recei’ahlcs

Duc from related parties
Other trade receivahles

Otlıer receivahles
Other non-trade receivables

Prepaid expenses
Current income Lax asseıs
Other current assets

Tlıcrmal TAS’
REIT Power Investment

49382
7.827

26.677
7.314

19.263
139
139

8.234
430

6.075

A kfen
Water IDO

Non-Current Assets
Other receivahles

Duc from related parties
Other non-trade receivables

lnvesımenıs accounted using the equity
metlıod

Financial investments
lnvestment property
Properiy. plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax assets
Prepaid expenses
Other non-cun-ent assets
Total Asse(s

Contributory vaiue-carrying amount
difference

Goodwiil written uff at Group level
Assets heM for sale

55.648
1.337.994

144
51

3,75 5
8.767

29.919
1,504,286

285,729
208.922
208.918

1

2,790 1,818,799
— 227.548
— 208,918
-- 18.630

78.166
55 .64 8

1.337.994
66.804

2,8 07
4.330
8.767

36.735
1,868,658

December 31,
2016

477
325

150
150

1

39,859
8.152

26.677
7.413

19.263
289
289

8.236
430

6.075

1.454,904
18.626

18.626

59,1)38 16,338

59.038 16.338 2.790

66.660 — — —

2.756 — — —

575 — — —

6,816 — — —

286,206 59,038 16,338 2.791)

(314.130) -- (37.254) -- -- (351.384)
3,309 -- .. -- -- 3.309

1,193,365 286,206 21,783 16338 2,790 1,520,583
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10 ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DISCONTINUED OPERATİONS
(continned)

As of lune 30, 2017 and 2016, the profit and Ioss statement items of Akfen REİTI the assets and
iiabiities ofwhich vere transferred to Akfen Engineering as ofianuan’ 16. 2017, considered asa
separate segment, are indicated under discontinued operations. As per TFRS 5- Non-Current Assets
Heid for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Akfen REITs profit and loss statemenı ilems for the
previous period are aiso ciassifled comparativeiy under discontinııed operations.
As of June 30, 2017 and 2016 the detaiis of period loss after tax from discontinııed operations are
as follows:

Akfen REİT

Revenuc
Cost of sales
Gruss profit
General administraıive expenses
Other ineome from operating aetivities
Other expenses from operating activities (-)
Profil from operatine activities
Finance income
Finance cxpenses
(Loss) from continuing operations
Ta. income
(Loss) from discontinued operations

April 1-
June 30.

2017

6,529 -- 14,248 7.556
(22447) -- (19.089) (5,184)
(11313) — 11.795 10.287

(539) -- (5.649) (2.419)
(11,852) — 6,146 7.868

(iThe related amounts consist of the balances between January t— Fehruao 16, 2017.

fol lows:
Thermal

Power
December 31.

20(6

As of December 31, 2016, liabilities regarding assets heid for sale are as

Akfen REIT
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilitles
Short tam borrowings
Trade payahks

Duc to related partics
Other trade payabks

Oıher pavables
Oiher nen-irade pavables

Enıployec henelli obligations
Current provisions
Other current Iiabilities

Non-Current Liabilities
Leng tam horrowings
Trade payahles

Duc to related parties
Other payables

Other non-trade payahles
Non-currenL provisions
Long (am provisions for empioyec beneflts
Delerred ta’ liahilities
Other non-current Iiabilities
Total Liabilities

Discontinued operations

96,931 6,432 103,373
84.240 -- %4.240
3233 4.139 7.372

— 4.134 4.134
3.233 5 3.238
7.586 2.284 9.870
7.586 2.284 9.870

55 5 60
260 14 274

1.557 -- 1.557

840,293 779 841,072
754.455 -- 754.455

235 235
235 235

29.772 29.772
29.772 29.772

—— —— 0
109 27 136

52.453 517 52.970
3.504 -- 3.504

937,224 7,221 944,445

Januarv 1—Jane
30.2017<9

6.524
(1.182)

5342
(755)

32
(14)

3.605

Januarv 1 —

Jane 30. 2016

26. 137
(4.193)
21.944
(4.277)

85
(1.116)
16.636

April 1—
Ju ne 30. 20 16

13.529
(2.198)
11331
(2.454)

56
(1.018)

7.915
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Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Fjnancial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless otherwise specifıed.)

11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED USİNG THE EQUITY METHOD

The carrying amounts of investrnents accounted using the equity method of the Group as of June
30, 2017 and December3l, 2016 are as foliows:

(fl As ot’iunc 31). 2017, transferred to assets heid for sale.

(As of Deccrnher 3!. 2ül6trnnsferred to asseısheld forsale and veretransIrred ıo Akfen Engineerin atFehrua0
16. 2017

The Group’s shares in the proflts of its investments accounted using the equity method in the proüt
or ioss stateınent for period ended on June 30 are as foliows:

M İP
TAV Airports (*)

Akfen Renewable Energy
TAV Investment (**)
İDO(**)
Akfen Water(**)

Transfer to assets heid for sale

Shareholding June3O, Shareholding December3l,
Rales (%) 2016 Rales (%) 2016

50.00 811,371 50.00 734,024
8.12 253,296 8.12 234,696

80.01 1,070,822 90.00 1,009,327
21.68 59,038

-- 30.00 2,790
50.00 16,338

2,135,489 2,056,213
(253,296) (78,168)
1.882,193 3,978,045

Januarv 1 — April 1- Januarv t — April t
.Iune3O,20I7 June3O,2017 .June3O,2OI6 iune3O,2016

MIP 82,790 40,105 68,1 12 31,514
TAV Airports 19,150 15,416 8,341 4,486
Akfen Renewable

17 348Energy(*)
‘ 41,119 --

TAVinvestment(**) 673 (17,559) (17,713)
İDO (**) (17,867) 6,902 (4,589)

382 359Akfen Water (**) 80 --

102,174 96,640 66,178 14,057

.Januarv t — .ApriI 1- Januarv t — April 1-
June3O,2016 June3O.2016 JuneJO.2015 June3O.20I5

MIP 68,112 31,511 57,504 31,800
TAV Airpons 8,310 4,486 20,527 13,633
TAV Airpons (tfl (17.559) (17,713) 4,381 3,080
İDO 6,901 (4,590) (61,017) (34,803)
Akfen Water(**) 381 360 (1.872) (1,803)

66,178 13,057 19,523 11,907

()Thedate on which the capital pavmentwas made which was detail giyen in Note as accepted as the nearest reporling
period for the income statement items as of June 30, 2017 and profıt or loss and other comprehensive income and
expense items have been consolidated with de previous capiıal ratio 90%

(iAs a result of the spin-off procedures on Febwary 16, 2017. Companies. which was transferred to Akfen
Engincering. prolil or loss and other comprehcnsive income items which is realized up to the date of transfer. \Vü5

included in the consolidated fınancial statements as nt and period ended June 30, 2017.
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11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED USİNG THE EQUİTY METHOD
(‘continuedj

As of Jıine 30, 2017, the movernenıs in investments accounted using the equity method are as
foliovs:

2.790
16.338

Period
profıt/

Ioss
82.790
19. 150

Olhıcr
eguity

nıovernents
(5.443)

Gains due ta
the chanee in

Transfer the share of

ffl partnership

Transfer
tü assets
heid for

sok

(253.296)

(‘) Transfcrrcd ta Akfen Engincering at Junuan 16. 2017.

As of June 30. 2016, the movements in investrnents accounted using the equity method are as
fo 1 lows:

Period
profıt! Other epuity Dividend

Ioss movements distrihution
68.112 (3,3 18) (49,862)

8,341 (1.454) (28.219)
(17,559) 248

6.902 559

.Iııne 30,
2016

55 1,838
178.302

-- 58.710
-- 45.312

Hedging agreements concinded byjoint ventures and the equity impact from funcıional currency
differences between Akfen Holding and its joint ventures are recognized under other
comprehensive income items.

.1 onun rv
1.2017

734.024
234.696

M iP
TAy Airpons
Akhim Rencwable
rncrgv
TA\’ In’.cstment
1 DO
Akkn Wutcr

Dividend
distribution

19.582 (20,132)

1.009.327 17.34%
59,038 673 903

(17.867) (544)

Jane 30,
2017

811,371

80 517

44,147

— (60.614)
— 15.621

(16.935)

-. 1.070.822

2,056,213 102,174 15,015 (20.132) (61.928) 44,147 (253,296) 1,882,193

MİP
TAV Airpons
TAV Investment
1 DO
Akfen Water

Januarv 1.2016
53 6,906
199,634
76,021
37,851
13.837 382 208 -- 14,427

864,249 66,178 (3,757) (78,081) 848,589
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11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(continucd)

MIP:
Sumrnary financial information on MIP is provided below:

June3I, December3l,
2017 2016

3,658,745 3,578,428

2,036,003 2,110,380

1,622,742 1,468,048

811,371 734,024

Assets Total
Liabilities Total

Net Assets

Group’s share in MIP’s net assets

Revenue
Gross profıt/(loss)
General administrative expenses
Other operating (expense)/income,

Operating profıt

Profıt before tax
Profıt after tax
Profıt for the period from parent
company shares
Group’s share in MIP’s profıt for
the period
Depreciation and amortization
expenses

(net)

Januarv 1 — April 1- Januarv 1 — April 1-
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2017 2017 2016 2016
516,156 257,420 395,431 190,357
298,297 146,764 233,891 108,781
(39,432) (21,453) (30,657) (15,373)

257,965 124,869 203,234 93,408
207,640 97,335 164,116 72,905
165,581 80,214 136,224 63,028

(900) (442)

165,58! 80,214 l36,224 63,028

82,790 40,105 68,1 12 31,514

79,94! 40,268 46,509 23,20!
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11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(continned)
TAV Airports:

Summary financial information on TAV Airporis k provided below:

Assets Total
Liabilities Total
Net Assets (fl
Group’s share in TAy Airports’ net assets

June 31,
2017

11,984.801
8,75 7,722
3,227,079

253,296

December 31,
2016

11,505,470
8,516,208
2,989,262

234,696

(*)As of June 30,2017, the share of the Group in the net assets ofTAV Airports ineludes a negative
goodwill in the amount ofTRY 8,716 (December 31, 2016: TRY 8.716). in addition. net asseis of
TAV Airpons include non-controlling interesıs in the amount ofTRY 443 (December 31, 2016:
TRY 387).
in the fınancial statements ofiune 30, 2017, ATO Turizm İşletmeciliği A.Ş., ATO Georgia
Operation Services LLC, ATO Tunisle SARL. ATO Macedonla Dooei. AS Riga Airport
Commercial Development. TAV Gözen Havacılık İşletme ve Ticaret A.Ş., Cyprus Airport
Services Ltd., TGS Yer Hizmetleri A.Ş.. SAUDI HAVAS Ground Handiing Services Limited,
BTU Lokum Şeker Gıda San. ve Tic. A.Ş., BTU Gıda Satış ve Paz. A.Ş.. BTA Denizyolları ve
Limanları Yiyecek ve İçecek Hizmetleri Tic. A.Ş. (“BTA Maritime Lines”). Tibah Airports
Development Company Limited, Tibah Airports Operation Limited, Medunarodna Zrana Luka
Zagreb d.d.. Upraviteli Zraöne Luke Zagreb d.o.o and ZAIC-A companies are consolidated by
TAV Airporis through the equity accounting method.

Revenue
Gross profıt!(Ioss)
General administrative expenses
Other operating income (net)
Share of profıt from investments accounted
using the equity method
Operating profıt
Profıt before tax
Profıt after tax
Profit for the period from parent company
shares
Croup’s sharc in TAy Airports’ profıt
for the period

Depreciation and amortization expenses

Januan’ t — April 1- .Ianuarv 1 — April 1-
.June 30. 1mw 30, .June 30, .Junc 30.

2017 2017 2016 2016
1,900,771 1.078,958 1,506,721 821,981

696,457 444,968 590.241 349,718
(297.861) (146.873) (275,948) (138,508)

217,512 101,769 172,156 88,497

2,512 9,064 27,757 16,760
618,650 408,928 514,206 316,467
360,538 268,062 226,705 153,936
241,924 203,259 69,962 30,431

235,868 189,857 102,728 55,257

19,150 15,416 8,341 4,486

231,329 114,799 161,379 82,558
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11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(contiııued)
TAY Investment:

As of Februaıy 16, 2017, TAV lnvestment was transferred to Akfen Engineering. Asa result of
the spin-off procedure on Februaıy 16, 2017, profit or Ioss and other comprehensive incorne iterns

whjch vere realized up İo the date of transfer, vere included in the consolidated financial
statements as at and period ended June 30, 2017. As of February 16, 2017, December 31, 2016
and June 30, 2016, summaiy financial information on TAV investrnent is provided below:

December 3!,
2016

Assets Total 3,901,566
Liabilities Total 3,629,250
Net Assets 272,3 16
Group’s share in TAY Investment’s net assets 59,038

Revenue
Gross proüt/(loss)
General administrative expenses
Other operating income/expense (net)
Operating (Ioss)/profıt
(Loss)/profıt before tax
(Loss)/profıt after tax
(Loss)/profıt for the period from parent company shares
Group’s share in the (loss)!proflt of TAY Investment for
the period

________________________________________________

Depreciation and amortization expenses

____________________________________________

Letter of guarantee commission expenses within the cost of
sales

IDO:

As of Februaıy 16, 2017, IDO was transferred to Akfen Engineering. As a resıılt of the spin-off
procedure on February 16,2017, profit or Ioss and other comprehensive income items which were
realized up to the date of transfer, vere inciııded in the consolidated fınancial statements as at and
period ended June 30, 2017.

January t- Januarv 1 — April t
February 16, June 30, Jane 30,

2017 2016 2016
277,336 1,286,039 640,821

24,508 (45,236) (65,63 1)
(15,017) (29,367) (16,185)

(2,212) 1,649 977
7,279 (72,954) (80,839)

(1,658) (89,659) (90,891)
3,103 (81,012) (81,719)
3,103 (81,012) (81,719)

673 (17,559) (17,713)

3,951 19,087 7,600

2,147 11,647 5,438
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INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(continued)
!2f2 frontinııccO:

As ofiune 30, 2017 and Decernber3l, 2016. summary financial information on İDO k provided
bel o w:

December 31.
2016

Assets Toıal 1.893.358
Liabihities Total 1.884.058
Net Asseis 9.300
Group’s share in İDOs net assets 2.790

ianunrv 1- Jnnunry 1 — April t—
Februnry 16, .lune 30. bine 30,

2017 2016 2016
Revenoc 42,703 277.593 158.308
Gross proflt/(Ioss) (7.104) 107,476 66.181
General administrative expenses (5.190) (30.887) (2(1.283)
Olber operating income/expense (net) 408 1.220 (173)
Share of prolit (‘tom investments accounted using the
equity method (299) 1,387 1.240
Operating prolit/(Ioss) (12.185) 79,196 46.965
I’roflU(Ioss) heibre tax (59.557) 23.670 (15,502)
Prolit/(loss) after tax (59.557) 23.004 (15.29%)
Proflti(loss) for the period from parent company shares (59.557) 23.004 (15.298)
Group’s shıare in İDO’s profıt/Ioss for the period (17,867) 6,901 (3,590)
Depreeiation and amonization expenses 11.829 41.741 21.050

As of Deceinber 31,2016 and June 30,2016, Zeytinburnu Liman işletmeleri San. ve Tie. A.Ş. and
BTA Maritime Lines are consolidated by İDO througlı the eqııity-accoıınting method.

Akfen Vater:
As of Februarv 16, 2017, Akfen \Vater was ıransferred tü Akfen Engineering. As a result of the
spin-off procedure on Febrnan’ 16. 2017, profit or loss and other comprehensive income items
which were reajized up to the date of transfer. vere included in the consolidated financial
staıements as at and period ended June 30, 2017. As of February 16. 2017, December 31. 2016
and June 30. 2016. summan’ financial information on Akfen Water is provided below:

Deeember 31. 2016
Assets Tom! 105.307
Liahilities Toıal 72,631
Net Asseis 32.676
Group’s share in the net assets of Akfen Water (1 16338

.l,ınuan’ t. .Januarv 1 — April 1.
Fehruan’ 16. .Iune 30, Jane 30.

2017 2016 2016

Revcnue 2.305 7.137 4,194

1,235 3.883 2.055

(479) (1.657) (763)

(372) (226) 26

384 2,000 1.318

615 2,229 1,431

357 1.481 1,062

Gross profitl(Ioss)

General administrahve expenses

Oıhıcr operating epense, (net)

Operating proflt

Prolit before ta,

rrorıt al’ıcr la\

Profıt for the period from parent compaay sharcs
Groopı share in Akfen IVaterı prorıt for the period

Depreciation and amoğization expenses

160 767 716
80 382 359

68 222 88
(*) As of December 31.2016. net asseis ofAkfen Water include non-controlling interests in the amount of TRY 6.623
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11 INVESTMENTS ACCOUNTED USING THE EQUITY METHOD
(continued)
Akfen Renewable Enerav:
Summary financial information on Akfen Renewable Energy is provided below:

June3O,2017 Dcccmber3l,2016
AssetsTotal 1,594.757 1.339.227
Liabilities Tutu! 1,117.095 1.078.977
Net Asseis 37Ş.662 260.250
Group’s share in Akfen Renewahle Energv’s net nssets 382,190 233,225
Oooduill carried al Group level 775,102 775,102
Carrying nmount 1,070,822 1,009,327

Since the transfer of 10% ofAkfen Renewable Energy shares are considered asa transaction giving
rise to a loss of control. the Company’s rernaining slıares in Akfen Renevable Energ ‘vere
recognized by their fair value and are accounted for by the equity method.
As ofJune 9.2017. Akfen Renewable Energy paid-in capital was inereased, on premiurn, to TRY
793,000 from TRY 705,000, with the EBRD and the IFC transferring USD 55.476,752.80. Thus,
the shares of EBRD and IFC increased to 19.99% while the share ofour Company was 80.01%.
Due tü this transaction, the effect of change in the net asseis of Akfen Renewables amounting to
TRY 44,147 has been aceounted in the income statement under income from investment activities
in the Group’s consolidated financial statements.
Kıızeybatu Eıektrik Uretim A.Ş. (“Kuzeybatıı”), which is subsidiary of Akfen Renewable, has
purclıased 4 WEPP project, whiclı are Derbent Enerji Uretim Pazarlama İthalat ve ihracat A.Ş.
rDerbent”). Isıder Enerji Uretim Pazarlama İthalat ve İhracat A.Ş. (Isıder). Kurda Enerji Üretim
Pazarlama İthalat ve İhracat A.Ş. (“Korda). Kovancı Enerji Uretim Pazarlama İthalat ve İhracat
A.Ş. (Kovancı) from Turquoise investments B.V. for USD 33.500,000 as of 13 June 2017. Akfen
Renewable k planning to complete the “Purchase Price Ailocation” report required by TFRS 3 -

‘Business Combinations” standard as of December 31, 2017, for this reason the amoıınt of
goodwill is provisionally reflected in the consolidated financial statements of Akfen Renewabie.

Net assets of Akfen Renewabie inelude non-controlling interests in the amount of TRY 286
(December 31, 2016: TRY 200).

.Ianuary 1 — April 1- .January 1 — April 1-
June 30, June 30, June 30, June 30,

2016

126.601 75,805 -- --

62.398 41,763 -- --

(8.665) (4.811) -- --

592 321 -- --

54.325 37.273
25.214 50,468
19.250 46.002
19.276 45.688

17348 41,119 — --

19.630 9.912 — --

Reven uc
Gross profıll(loss)
General administrutive espenses
Other operating epense. (net)
Operating profıl
Profıt before Ifl.\
Profıt after tax
Profıt for the period from parent company shares
Croup’s share in Akfcn Renewable’s loss for
the period

Depreciation and amortization expenses
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(Convenience translnfion of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated financial statements originniiy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Finaııcial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TRY”) unless otherwise specifled.)

13 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The rnovements in intangible flxed assets and
ended Jııne 30, 2017 are as follows:

related accurnulated amortization for the period

Other intangibk
assetsLicenses Total

Cost value

Opening balance on ianuarv 1, 2016 745 30,852 37,597
Impacı of ehange in ilie Group stmcture (1 2.872 -- 2.872
Addiıions 3 257 260
Impairmenı of intangihle asseis (98) (29.468) (29.566)
Ciosing balance on December 31. 2016 3,522 1,631 5.163

Opening balance on Januan 7, 2017 — 1,696 1.696
Additions 708 -- 708
Transfer(**) 4.071 -- 4.071
Ciosing balance on June 30. 2017 4.779 1,696 6,475

O(lıer intangible
Licenses assets Total

Amortization

Opening balance on January 1. 2016 (140) (1.117) (1.257)
lmpact of ehange in the Group simeture (t) (287) — (287)
Currenı period amortization expcnse (10) (108) (118)
Ciosing balnnce on June 30. 2016 (437) (1,225) (1.662)

Opening balance on Januarv 1, 2077 — (1,389) ((.389)
Current period amortization eNpense (772) (97) (869)
Ciosing baL nce on June 30. 2017 (772) (1,486) (2,258)

Net booL valuc
Net book value as ofiune 30, 2016 3,085 416 3.501
Net book value as ofiune3ü, 2017 4,007 210 3,217

which was being consolidated under the HEPP(*) This is the impact of the transfer of shares of Laleli,
Group, la Akfen Thermai Energy as of December3l, 2015.
(**) This is the impact of the transfer of cost of SAP program which was completed and staned to be used
asofianuaıy 1,2017.
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(Convenicnee transintion oftlıc indepcndent nuditors’ report and consolidated fınancini stntements originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes ta the Consolidated Financial Statcments
As M and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounts are in thousand Turkish Liras (‘TRY”) unless oıhenvise specifıed.)

14 GOVERNMENT INCENTIVES AND CRANTS

in accordance wiih the lnvestment Incentives Law No. 47/2000, Akfen REIT has a 100% investment
incentive without any time restrictions for its investments in the TRNC until December 31. 2008.

The Councii of Ministers decided in its resolution No. 2003/5868 ofiuly 1,2003 that the special
consumption tax rate for the fuei to be giyen to ships exciusively canying cargo and passengers
on the cabotage line. commercial yachts, service and fıshing boats. which are ali registered in the
Turkish international Register of Ships aııd dıe Natioııal Register of Ships on the condition that
the amount ofsuch fuel be determined in fine with the teclınical specifıcations ofeach individual
ship and this be recorded in the journai of the ship which vifl use such fuei be reduced to zero
percent starting from the beginning of 2004. IDO has been enjoying a special consumption tax
discount in İhis scope since 2004.
The resolution of the Council of Ministers No. 2004/5266 of December 2, 2004 provides ıhat the
reventıes frorn the operation and transfer of ships and yachts registered in the Turkislı international
Register of Ships are exempt fronı income and corporate taxes and funds. Therefore, purciıasing,
sales, mortgage, registration, ban and freight contracts pertaining to ships and yachts to be
registered in the Turkishı international Register of Ships are not subject to stamp duty, ievies,
banking and insurance transactions tax and fıınds. To this end, iDO enjoys corporate tax and
income tax discounts.

As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, TAV Esenboğa and TAV Izmir have investrnent
i ıı c e ıı t i ves.

For HEPP investments, the Group has investment incentives in the form of VAT exemption and
custorns duty exemption that it has obtained by submiuing various documents.
Moreover, solar paneis to be imported are removed frorn the scope of incentives and VAT
exemption through the “Communique (Communique No: 2016/2) on Amending the Communique
(Communique No: 2012/1) on the lmpiernentation of the Decision on State Aid for lnvestments,
which was published in the Offıciai Gazette No. 28329 ofiune 25.2016. Out of our SPP projects,
those ihat have not applied for or received VAT exemption and investment incentive before the
date of pubhication of the Communique cannot beneflt the VAT exemption and customs duty
exemption for the solar panels they wili import.

15 PROVISİONS, CONTINGENT ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Provisions for short term liabilitles

As of June 30. 2017 and December 31, 2016. the provisions for current iiabihities are as follows:

June 30,

___________

2017
Employee benefits (Note 17) 2.988

December 31,
2016

3.001
3,0012,988

Provisions for hong term liabilities
June 30, December 31,

PU
Non-current provisions for empioyee beneflts

1,498 1.410(Note 17)
1,498 1,410
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(Convenience translrıtion of the independent auditors’ report anti consolidated financial statemenis originaliv
issued in Turkislı)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidatcd Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amoun(s are in thousand Turkish Lims (“TRY’) unless otherwise specifıed.)

16 COMMITMENTS

Letters of guaranice, pledges and mortgages giYen

B.Total Amount of GPM Giyen in Favorof
Parınerships which are FulIy Consolidated
C.Total Amount of GPM Giyen for Assurance of Third Parties
Debts

Companles
which B and C do not comprisc
ili. Total Amount ofGPM Giyen in Favor ofThird Parties which C
does not cornprise

The breakdown. in foreign curreney, of the GPM the Group has giyen is as follows:

TRY

June 30. 20(7<’>

Us
EUR Dollar

Dcccmber3l, 2016<”

TRY
Us

EUR DoIiar

GRM giyen on behalf of the
Group’s own legal entity
GPM giyen in favor of companles
under fulI consolidation
Total of other GPMs giyen

() Ali amounıs are TRY denominated.

As at June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Groups staternents on its position related to
letters of guarantee/pledges/rnortgages are as foliows:

CPM givcn bv the Group
ATotal Amount ofGPM Giyen on BehalfofOwn Legal Entity

in Order to Conduct Usual Business Aclivities
D.Totat Aınount of Other GPM Giyen
i. Total Amount ofGPM Giyen in Favor of the Parent Company
ii. Total Arnount of GPM Giyen in Favor of Other Group

.lunc 30,
2017

63,053

1,017.589

1,0 17,589

December 31,
2016

1,226,956

653,3 22

1,026,461

1,026,461

Total 1,080,642 2,906,739

As of June 30, 2017, dıe ratio of other GPM giyen by the Company to equity 1s65% (December
31, 2016: 52%). As of June 30, 2017. GPM’s of Akfen REİT which vas ıransferred to Akfen
Engineering, has been exclusion from the Group’s consolidation.

3,081 -- 59,972 42,449 1,121,513 62,994

-- --
-- 245,233 408,089 --

172,693 9,942 834,954 164,509 28,035 833,917

175,774 9,942 894,926 452,191 1,557,637 896,911
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Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notcs to the Consolidated Financial Statements
As at and For the Six Month Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounis are in thousand Turkislı Liras (“TRY”) uniess otherwise specifled.)

17 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

As ofiune 30. 2017 and December 3!. 2016. emplovee benefıts are comprised of the provisions
for unused vacation and provisions for employee termination benefıts. Employee benefits for the
periods ended on June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are as follows:

June3O, Decembcr3l,
2017 2016

Provision for unused vacation - shon-tenu 2,988 3,00!
Provision for employee ternıination beneFıts - long-term 1,498 1,410

4,486 4,411

18 EQUITY
As of June 30, 2017, Akfen Holding has 72.492.580 shares ata nominal value of fuli TRY 1 each.
As of December 31, 2016, the capita! in the amount of TRY 72.493 is fuliy paid.

June3O, Dcccmber3l,
2017 2016

issued capitai 72,493 667,08 1

16.858.186 shares heid by Hamdi Akın, a sharehoider of the company, are Group A registered
shares wlıile 55.634.394 Group B shares are entirely bearer shares.

.Junc 30, 2017 December 31. 2016
Sharc Sbareholding Sharc Sharcholding

Amount Rate % Amount Rate %

Hamdi Akın(*) 62,200 85.80 572,365 85.80
Selim Akın 2,5 18 3.47 23,174 3.47
Akfen !nfrastructure 7,154 9.87 65,829 9.87
Other shareholders 621 0,86 5,713 0.86
lssued capital (nominal) 72,393 100.00 667,081 100.00

Through the letter of the CMB dated December 18,2015, the required CMB approvai was obtained
in terms of decreasing the issued capital ofAkfen Holding by the cancellation of the shares bought
back during the Hoiding’s second buyback program. The act of canceiling shares with a nominal
value of TRY 14,819 in an effort to decrease the Company capita! from TRY 261,900 to TRY
247.08! was approved during the Extraordinaıy General Assembiy Meeting ofianuary 20, 2016,
and the said capital decrease was performed on ianuary 28, 2016. As of May 27, 2016, the
Company capital standing at TRY 247.081 was increased bv TRY 420,000 to TRY 667,08!
through provisions from internal resources. Following the spin-off procedure of Akfen Holding
on Februan’ 16, 2017, the Company’s capital decreased to TRY 72.493.

The Company’s 16,858,166 Group A shares are priveleged shares and have the right to three votes
in the General Assembly.
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18 EQUITY (continued)
Treasııary shares
When the shares that vere recogııized as paid-in capital are bought bnck. the amount paid k
deducted frorn eqnity in a vay to include the amount resulting frorn the deduction ofthe tax irnpact
of costs aitributable to buyback. Shares bought back are indicated asa redLıction in shareholders’
equity. Wlıen the shares are sold or re-issued, the amount obtained is registered as capital inerease
and the resulting transaction surplus/(deflcit) is transferred to retained earnings.
As of December 31, 2015, Akfen Holding purchased 6,829,508 shares of Akfen Holding worth
TRY 42,506 within the frarnework of the “Share Buyback Program” as decided during the
Extraordinaıy General Assembiy Meeting of the Company on January 15, 2015. The Company
holds 7,989,806 Akfen Holding shares purchased during the previous buyback program. As of
December 31, 2015. the total number of Akfen 1-lolding shares bought back k 14,819,314, and
their ratio to capital k 5.66%. As of December 31, 2015, the total valııe of shares bought back k
TRY 76,029. As of January 28, 2016, these shares vere deducted from the capital of Akfen
Holding through a capital decrease.

When the shares İhat vere recognized as paid-in capital are bought back, the amount paid is
deducted from equity in a vay to include the arnount resulting from the deduction of the tax irnpact
of costs attributable to buyback. Shares bought back are indicated asa reduction in shareholders’
equity.
As of December 31, 2016, Akfen REIT purchased 2,409,000 shares of Akfen REIT worth TRY
3.339 within the framework of the “Share Buyback Program” as decided during the Ordinary
General Assembiy Meeting ofAkfen REIT on May 24, 2016. As of Decenıber 31,2016, the ratio
of Akfen REIT shares that are bought back to the capital of Akfen REIT k 1.31%.

Excluınge diJft’rences on traııslaıion

Exchange differences on translation worth TRY 379.767 reflected in equity as oflune 30, 2017
includes the foreign currency translation difference from the translation of USD and EUR, the
funetional cıırrencies in the financial statements ofMlP and TAV Airports, into TRY, the reporting
currency (December 31, 2016: TRY 388,923; TAV Investment, MIP, Akfen Water, Akfen
Construction, Akfen REIT and TAV Airports).

Restrided resen’es
For shares bought back as per Article 520 of the Law No. 6102, contingeney reserves atan amount
that rneets the acquisition value are earmarked. The Group allocated reserves in the amount of
TRY 76,029 for bııyback shares within the amount of reserves on retained earnings included in
the consolidated financial statements as of Januaryl, 2016. Following the capital decrease of
Januaıy 28. 2016, the resenes allocated were cancelled.
Losses on hedgL’
Hedging reserve is comprised of the effective portion of cumulative changes in the net fair value
of cash flow hedging instruments in relation to the transaction hedged against a potential risk. As
ofJune 30.2017. a hedging resen’e of TRY 6,092 conceming the interest rate and cross rate swap
agreernents (TAV Airports: TRY 7,293) (December 3!, 2016: TRY 15,431 - TAV Airports: TRY
8,322; İDO: TRY 7,109) is reflected in equity.

Effect of bussiness conıblıtations ııııder conmion contro!

Shares bought from entities underjoint control are recognized over their carıying amount. The
difference between the amount paid and the canying amount ofthe net asset obtained is recognized
in equity.
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18 EQUITY (continued)
IıcrL’ase.ç on revahuıtioıı ofpropertr, plan! and equipıneııt

As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, consolidated financial statements include the share
in revaluation increase fund of the Group.
Shan’ prL’nıiııın (discoıuı!s)

Since Companv shares vere sold at a price lıigher than their nominal value during the IPO of
Akfen Holding on May 14, 2010 and the private placemenz for corporate investors on BİAŞ
Wholesaie Market on November 24, 2010. differences in the amount of TRY 90,505 and TRY
364,277 vere recognized respectively as share prerniurns. Such premiums are indicated under
equily and cannot be distributed but can be used during capital increases in the future.
On April 10. 2013, Akfen 1-lolding increased ils paid-in capilal by bonus issue to TRY 291,000
frorn TRY 145,500. This inerease was entircly performed on provisions from share premium.
On May 27,2016, the Company increased its paid-in capital by bonus issue to TRY 667,081 from
TRY 247,08!. A TRY 120,8 10 portion of this increase was performed on provision from special
ftınds and aTRY 299,190 portion on provision from premiums on capital stock.
Proflts and losses from share sales and purchases regarding subsidiaries in which the controlling
interest does not change are also recognized in this account. Akfen REIT increased its capital by
TRY 46,000 through the Board of Directors resolution ofianuary 24, 2011. On May 11,2011, a
total of 54,117,500 Akfen REİT shares with a nominal value of TRY 54,118, cornprised of
46,000,000 shares corresponding to such increase and 8,117,500 shares of Akfen REIT, a
subsidiaıy ofAkfen Holding, corresponding to TRY 8,118, vere publiciy offered. in the foilowing
days, Akfen Holding bought back a total of 8,040,787 shares in order to strike a price stability for
Akfen REIT shares. These transactions which change the shareholding power without losing
control are recognized under share premiums in equity together with the offsetting of transaction
costs.As of December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, the Cornpanys Group slıare in Akfen
REIT capital stood at 56.88%. Following the purchases, Akfen Holding’s shares in Akfen REIT
increased to a tom! of 104.656.831, with 9,500,447 (ratio in capital: 5.16%) being traded on BİAŞ,
Akfen REIT vere transfered to Akfen Engineering at February 16, 2017.
Non—controlling iıık’rests
Dut of the net assets of subsidiaries, the porlions corresponding to the shares out of direct and/or
indirect control of the parent company are ciassifled within the item “Non-controlling interest’ in
the consolidated balance sheet.
As of December 31,2016, Akfen Holding subsidiaries that are subject to minority interest accounting
are Akfen Tlıermal Power (0.36%) and Akfen REIT (43.12%).
As oflune 30, 2017. there is no amounts classifled within “Non-controlling interests” in the balance
(December 31,2016: TRY 254.316). Similarly, otu of the net profıts or losses ofsubsidiaries for the
period. the ponions corresponding to the shares out of direct and/or indirect control of the parent
company are ciassifled within “Non-controlling interests” in the consolidated comprehensive income
staterneat. Losses for non-controlling interests in periods ended June 30, 2017 and December 31,
201 6 are TRY 5,63 1 and TRY 2,785 respectively.
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19 SALES A£’1D COST OF SALES

19.1 Sales

The breakdown of revenııe for the periods ended June 30 is as follows:

January 1— April 1- January 1 April 1-
June 30, June 30, z June 30,

2017 2017 June3O, 2016
2016

Electricity sales incorne -- 130,785 68,596
Other(*) 2,124 1,139 239 --

2,124 1,139 131,024 68,596

(*) As of June 30, 2017, other income consists of reflection incorne which k cost that are
undertaken for the Group’s companles.

19.2 Cost ofsalcs

The breakdown of the cost of sales for the periods ended June 30 is as follows:

.Ianuan’ 1 — April 1- Januarv 1 — April 1-
.lune 30, June 30, June 30, June 30.

2017 2017 2016
Outsourced beneflts and senices --

— 37,126 16,508
Deprecialion and amortization expenses -- -- 17,085 11,692
Personnel costs — -- 5,060 2,220
Insurance expenses -- -- 2,330 1,1 13
Other -- -- 3,962 2,211

--
-- 65,563 33,744
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20 GENERAL ADMİNISTRATIVE EXPENSES

The breakdown of general administrarive expenses for the periods ended June 30 is as follows:

Personnel costs
Rental/lease costs
Consultaney cosis
Depreciation and amortization
Traveiling expenses
Offıce materials expenses
General offlce expenses
Representation expenses
Donations
Taxes. levies and duties
Insurance expenses
Advertising expenses
Other expenses

Januarv 1 — April 1- January 1 — April 1-
.June 30, .June 30. June 30, June 30,

2017 2017 2016 2016
10,239 4,496 27,519 5,181

1,757 856 1,877 929
1,644 1,009 5,610 2,941
1,045 550 353 78

758 463 831 377
661 142 416 209
58! 274 634 346
295 195 205 94
232 12 375 165
154 29 2,066 1,852
86 42 111 49
64 43 49 9

574 335 2,199 835
18.090 8.446 42345 13.065

21 OTHER INCOME FROM
The breakdown of other income
follows:

OPERATİNG ACTIVİTİES
frorn operating activities for the periods ended June 30 is as

Januarv 1 — Apri! t- Januarv t — Apri! t
June 30, June 30, .lune 30, June 30,

iii ii 19J
Rent income 120 -- 1,088 535
Foreign exchange difference

60 38 52 52ıncome
Insurance income 68! 580
Other 146 44 2,599 2,580

4,420 3,747

22

326 82

OTHER EXPENSE FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
The breakdown of other expense from operating activities for the periods ended June 30 is as
fol Iows:

January 1 — April 1- Januarv 1 — April 1-
June 30. June 30. June 30. June 30,

İm nE 2flİ 2QI
Impairment on asset (*) 3,598 -- -- --

Foreign exchange difterence
162 90 175 89expense

Other 104 31 140 19
3,864 124 315 108

(9 As of June 30, 2017, the impairment on asset consist of the expenses incured by the Environmental
!mpact Assessment (EIA) process is over as of ianuary 19, 2017 and cancelling the production license of
Laleli Dam and HEPP project which is exist within the structure of Energy Thermal. (June 30, 2016: None).
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23 INCOME FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Gains due to the change in the share
of paunership (Note Il)

Other

January t — April t- .Januan t — April 1-
June 30. .June 30. June 30. June 30.
7 26 20

44,147 44,147
224 13 498 72

24

25

34,371 44,160 398 72

FINANCE INCOME

The breakdown of finance income for the periods ended June 30 is as follows:

Januarv 1 — April 1- Januarv 1 — April 1-
June 30, June 30, .Junc 30, June 30,

2Q11 2fl Zflİ
Interest income -- -- 23,214 --

Foreign exchange difference
39,167 19,606 31,834 15,488ıncome
39,167 1 9,606 55,048 15,488

FINANCE EXPENSES

The breakdown of fınance expenses for the periods ended June 30 is as follows:
.lanuan’ 1 — April t- January 1— April t

June 30. June 30, lune 30, June 30,
7 6 26

Interest expenses 54,620 27.722 82.189 49,932
Foreign e<change difference losses 28,893 4,684 -- --

Other 4.095 286 908 156
87.608 32,692 83,097 50,088
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26 TAX ASSETS AND LİABILITIES
Corporate tax:

The corporate tax rate in Turkey that appiies to the statutory tax base which is calculated by adding
the expenses, the discoıınt of which cannot be accepted as per tax laws, to the commercial earnings
of corporations and dedııcting exeınptions specifled in tax Iaws 1520%.
As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31,2016, tax rates (%) empioyed in deferred tax caicıılations in
consideration of the tax legislation in force in each respective country are as foiiows:

Country Tax Kate Country Tax Kate
Tunisia 25 Qatar 10
Georgia 15 Onun 12
Egypt 25 Cyprus 23.5
Macedonia 10 Saudi Arahin 20
Latvia 15 Russia 20
Libya 20 Netherlands 20

There is no corporate tax practice in Dubai and Abu Dhabi.

The corporate tax rate in Nortlıem Cyprus that applies to the statutoıy tax base which is calculated
by adding the expenses, the discount of which cannot be accepted as per tax Iaws, to the cornmerciai
earnings ofcorporations and deducting exernptions specifled in tax Iaws is 23.5%. Akfen Trade and
Akfen Construction have branch offıces in Nodhem Cyprus and thus pay such tax rates due to their
operations.

As per Georgian iaws, the taxable corporate revenues was reduced to 15% from 20% as ofianuary
1,2008. A deferred tax of 15% is caicuiated over the assets and Iiabilities items that are the subject
of deferred tax as of December 31, 2009.
As per Tunisian Iaws, the taxabie corporate revenues are caicuiated as 25% over the remaining tax
base after the iegaliy dedııctibie expenses are deducted. The concession agreement TAV Tunisia
signed provides that TAV Tunisia is exempt from corporate tax fors years starting from the date
of entry into force of the concession agreement.
A withholding Iiabiiity applies to dividend distributions and such withhoiding Iiabiiity is accrued
in the period wlıen dividend payment is made. Dividend payrnents except those that are made to a
bıısiness in Turkey or limited taxpayer corporations obtaining revenues via a permanent
representative and corporations based in Turkey are subject to a 15% withholding tax. in the
application of withholding rates pertaining to dividend distributions made to limited taxpayer
corporations and reai persons, withholding rates provided in the relevant Agreements on the
Prevention of Double Taxation are aiso considered. The allocation of retained earnings to capital
does not count as dividend distribution. Therefore, it is not subject to withholding tax.
The Corporate Tax Law (CTL) provides that 75% of income from the sales ofaffihates and tangibie
fıxed assets owned for at least two years utiiize a tax exception if they are recognized in equity
accounts for use in capital increase within five years following the date of sales. The remaining 25%
is subject to corporate tax.

Provisions on transfer pricing are stated in Article 13 of the CTL under the heading “Dividend
distribution concealed via transfer pricing”. General communique of November 18, 2007 on
dividend distribution concealed via transfer pricing include provisions on impiementation. if a
taxpayer trades goods or services with related corporations and if prices are not set in a way both
parties are independent and do not dominate each other, it is assumed that relevant dividends are
distributed by conceaied means through transfer pricing. Such concealed dividend distributions
cannot be deducted from tax in the calcıılation of corporate tax.
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26 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continnecü
Corporate tax (coıııiııııed:
The tax legislation in Turkey does not ailow the parent cornpanies and the subsidiaries thereofto
subrnit a consolidated tax statement. Therefore. the tax provisions reflected in consoiidated
fınancial staternents are calculated separateiy for each company that 15 consolidated.
The Turkish tax legislation provides that [ınancial losses may be carried forward for five years in
order to be set off from the future corporate revenues. However. fınancial losses cannot be set off
frorn retained earniııgs.

in Turkey, agreernent with the tax adrninistration on taxes ro be paid is not a common practice.
Corporate tax returns are submined within four months fohlowing the rnonth when the accounting
period k ciosed. Tax aııdit bodies may audit ilie tax retıırns and the accounting records setting ü

basis for sueh returns for a period of fıve years foliowing the accounting period and make ü new
assessment in line with their fındings.
Article 5/1 (d)(4) of the CTL No. 5520 provides that revenues frorn real estate investment trusts
are exempted frorn Corporate Tax. Such exernpiion aiso appiies to Provisionai Tax for interim
periods.

Income tax withhoidinp:
in addition to corporate tax, it 15 required to caicuiate income tax withhoiding separateiy over the
dividends except for those that are distributed to fully responsibie corporations which obtains a
dividend ifthey distribute dividends and inciude such dividends in corporate revenues and declare
thern. Income tax withholding rate is 10% for alI coınpanies starting from Aprii 24, 2003. This
rate is set at 15% in Article 15 of the Law No. 5520 in order to be effective from June 21, 2006.
Tlırough the Council of Ministers resolution published in the Offlciai Gazette on JuIy 23, 2006,
incorne Tax Withholding is increased frorn 10% to 15% starting from JuIy 23, 2006. Dividends
wlıich are not distributed but added to capitai are not subject to income tax withholding.
Transfer pricin! arran2ements:

in Turkey. transfer pricin arrangements are stated in article 13 of the CTL headed ‘distribution
of concealed gains via transfer pricing”. Comrnunique ofNovember 18, 2007 on the distribution
of conceaied gains via transfer pricing regulates practicai details.
ifa taxpayer ırades goods or services with related persons over the fee or price that it sets in breach
of the arrn’s iength principle, the gains are considered to be partiy or entirely distributed by
concealed means via transfer pricing. Such distribution of concealed gains via transfer pricing is
considered as non-deductible expenses for corporate tax.
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26 TAX ASSETS AND LIABILITIES (continued)

26.1 Tax income / (expense)

The deıails oftax income/expenses for the years ended June 30 is as follows:

January 1 — April 1- ianuarv t — April 1-
June 30, June 30, .Iune 30. June 30,

26
Current corporate İax expense -- (2,950) (1.980)
Defered tax income / (expense) (49) 1.346 4,892
Tax income/(expense)
recognized in continued (49) (1,604) 2,912
operations
Tax income from discontinued

(539) -- (5.649) (2,4 19)operatıons
Total (588) -- (7,253) 493

26.2 Deferred tax asset and liabilitv
Deferred tax is recognized in respect of temporary differences betwecn the carn’ing amounts of
assets and Iiabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes.
except for the differences of non4ax deductible goodwill. and assets and Iiabilities that are not
accountable and taxable and are recognized for the first time.

De-recognized and defrrred lar asa’! and liabiIitı’
By the end of the reponing period, the Company and its sub5idiaries have an unused fınancial Ioss
worth TRY 381,081 (December 31, 2016: TRY 272,467) that they could set offagainst deferred
income. A deferred tax asset in the amount ofTRY 76.216 (December 31,2016: TRY 54,493) in
relation to accumulated losses that are thought to be not taxable by the Group is not recognized.

The rnaturity of accumulated losses not recognized in the calculation of defered tax asset wili
expire in the following manner:

June 30, December 31,
2017 2016

2017 1,789
2018 20,487 26,324
2019 22,148 33,811
2020 40,947 54,954
2021 148,8!? 155,589
2022 148,682 --

381,081 272,467
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27 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net proflt’(loss) for the period from continued
operations belonging to the shareholders of the parent
company
Net proflti(Ioss) for the period from discontinued
operations belonging to the shareholders of the parent
company
Net profit for the period belonging to the shareholders

of the parent cornpany
Average number ofshares available during the period
Earnings/(losses) per share from continued operations
(ful! TRY)
(Losses)/eamings per share from discontinued
operations (fuli TRY)
Earnings per share (fuli TRY)

in the consolidated financial statements, shareholders. key rnanagement staff and members of the
board ofdirectors. their farniiles and the subsidiaries controlled by thern or afflhiated to thern. and
affıiiates and joint ventures are adopted as related parties. Various transactions vere carried out
with the related partles during the normal functioning of the entity. Sııch transactions vere carried
out generaliy in line with market conditions during the normal functioning of the entity.

28.1 Rclated party balances

The short-ierm receivables and payables concerning related parties as of June 30, 2017 and
December 31, 2016 are as follovs:

June 30, 2017
Trade receivables 107
Other receivables

(Convcnience translation of the independent auditors’ report and consolidated fınancial statements originaliy
issued in Turkish)

Akfen Holding Anonim Şirketi
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statcments
As tat and For the Six ?lonth Period Ended June 30, 2017
(Ali amounls are in thousand Turkish Liras (“TR\”) uniess otherwise specifıed.)

Since the capital increase by the Company during the period ended June 30, 2017 was covered
from equity. such bonus shares are considered as preferred shares whiie caiculating the monthly
revenue. Therefore. the weighted average shares empioyed in the caiculation of earnings per share
are obtained by retrospectiveiy considering the bonus shares issued.

January 1— April 1- Januarv t — April 1-
<Jane 30, June 30. ,Junc 30. Jane 30,

7

78,531 120,365 34,397 (22,080)

(6,221) -- 3,36! 5,722

72,310 120,365 37,758 (16,358)
72,492,580 72,492,580 72,492,580 72,492,580

1,08 1,66 0,47 (0,30)

(0,08) 0,05 0,08
1,00 1,66 0,52 (0,23)

28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Trade payables
Other payables

Deccmbcr3l, 2016

71 5.611
178 5,611

1,172 1,019
21 --

1,193 1,019

The iong-term receivables and payables concerning related parties as of
December 3 1, 2016 are as follows:

Other receivables

Other payables

Jane 30, 2017 and

June 30, 2017 December 31. 2016
611,500 401,092
611,500 401,092

11,524 10,58!
11,524 10,581
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28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (conıinued)

28.1 Retated pariy balances (conünued)
Ali other transactions carried out between the Cornpany and its subsidiaries and joint ventures that
are not stated in this note are elirninated during consolidation. The detaiis of balances between the
Group and other related parties are available on the foilowing page.
The irade and other shon-term receivabie balances concerning related parties as ofiune 30, 2017
and December 3!, 2016 are as foilows:

Trade and other short-terın receivables duefroın reiak’d June 30, December 31.
paflks: 2017 2016
Akfen infrastructııre -- 5,57 1
Other 178 40

178 5,611

The irade and other short-term payables balances of the Group concerning related panies as of
June 30, 2017 and December 31,2016 are as foliows:

Trade and other shorl-ternı receiı’abks duefrom relak’d June 30, December 31,
parık’s: 2017
MIP 984 971
Otlıer 209 48

1,193 1,019

The other Iong.terrn receivabie balances of the Group concerning related parties as of June 30,
201 7 and December 3 1, 2016 are as follows:

iline 30, December 31,
Olb er hmg—term receit’abks dut’ from rdated purtles: 2017
Akfen Construction (W) 303,251 279,520
Akfen Renewabie Energy (1 137.125 96,934
Akfen lnfrastructure() 91,733
Akfen Engineering (**) 78.307
Akfen Power Distribution 16,637
Akfen Water 7,2 13
IDO 86
Other 1.081 702

611.500 401.092
( As of lune 30. 2017 and December 31. 2016. other Iong-wrm receivahles due from relMed partics consist of the
amuunts that the Compan has giyen to the compaıies in the group ta fınance their capital and oneoing investmcnts and
the Company calculates the finarıcing income tbr the related rcccivahies aL the same level of interes rates as the market
conditions.
(**) As of lune 30. 2017. other Iong4enn receivables duc from related paaies consist of the amounts (hat the division
on Fehruan 16. the Company calculates the rınancing income for the related receivables at the same level oF interest
rates as the market conditions.

OıIıer !ong-tenn payables tv relatedparties:
As ofiune 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, alI balances of other short-term payabies to related
parties are fully comprised of Akfen Holding’s payables to TAV Investment.
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28 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES (continued)

28.3 Benefits to senior executives

16.515 Financing income

)33 Eicctriciıv Sales
— Incüme
- Elucıriciiv Sales

i0.Dl7 -

1 ncome

3.099 Elecıricitv Sales
in come

1 533
Elecıricity Sales
incoııw

376 ırinancing income

469
Electricity Sales
Income

-- Financing income

Total short-ıerrn beneflts provided to senior managers for Akfen Holding and subsidiaries for the
period ended on June 30, 2017 k TRY 2,239 (December 31.2016: TRY 11,170)

28.2 Related party transactions
As of June 30, 2017 and December
fo 1 lows:

Senk’s ıkIiıered in rdııted panks:

31, 2016, the services delivered to related parties are as

June3O,20i7 June3O.20i6

Amount Transaction Amount Transaction
22.321

7.592

3.578

Financing income

Financing income

Financing incomc

Company

Akfen Infrasırucıure

Akfen Renewable Energ’

Akfen Engincering

Akfen Construction

Akfen Construction

FAV Airporıs

Mil’

DO

Akfcn \\‘ater

Akflm Water

Other

Other

438 Financing income

105 Other

34.034 32,742

As ofiune 30, 20! 7 and December 31, 2016, the senices received due from related parties are as
fo Il ows:
Senices received duefroın related
pariles: June3O.2017 June3O,2016

Company Amount Transaction Amount Transaction
lbs Siaortave Reasümns Brokerliüi A.Ş. 30 Procurement 1.900 Procurement

30 1.900
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29 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS FROM FINANCİAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Liquidity risk

The maturitles of f5nancial Iiabilities of the Group ineluding estimated interest payments that are
set aceording to the repayment schedule as ofiune 30, 2017 are as follows:

June 30, 2017
Contractual

More
Note Carrying Less than 03- 12 1 -5 (han

amount cadı outflows (otnI 3 months months vears 5 years
Financial liabihitics
Borrowings 7 699.762 (719.800) (270.011) (379.627) (70.159)
Bonds 7 521.646 (702,403) (19.195) (113.270) (569.938)
Trade payables 8 363 (363) (233) (129) —

Pavahlcsıo relured panies 8-9-27 12.717 (12.717) (212) (981) (11.524)
Oder pa>ahlcs (t) 3.198 (3.498) (3.198) — --

Total 1,237,986 (1.438.781) (293.153) (394,007) (651.621)

(*) Non-financial Iiabilities sııch as security deposits and advances taken are not inclııded within
other payables.

The maturitles of fiııancial liabilitles of the Group ineluding estirnated interest payments that are
set according to the repayrnent sclıeduie as of December 31, 2016 are as foliows:

Deccmber3l,2016

Contractual

N
Carrying cash outflows Less than 03- 12 1 -5 More (han

amount total 3 months months vears 5 years
Finaocjal Iiabilities
Borrowings 7 679,924 (707.939) (15.775) (477.421) (214,744)
Bonds 7 410.971 (424.239) (358.227) (66.012) --

Tradepayables 8 1,717 (1.717) (1.588) (129) --

Payables to related parties 8-9-27 11.6(1(1 (11.600) (48) (970) (10.581)
Othcr payables (1 2.298 (2.298) (2.298) -- --

Total 1.106.510 (1,147,793) (377.936) (544,532) (225,325)

(*) Non-fınancial Iiabiiiiies such as security deposits and advances taken are not ineluded within
other payables.
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29 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS FROM FINANCİAL İNSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Foreign curreney risk
Exchange risk exposure
The Group’s foreign curreney position as of June 30. 2017 is based on the foreign curreacy-based
assets and Iiabilities indicated in the staternent below:

June 30. 2017
TRV Otlıer

Equivalent USD EUR (*)

1. Trude receivables
2a. Monciar Financial Asseis (including sare and baak
accounts) 61.136 17.363 39 17
2b. Non-Monetan’ Financial Asseis
3. Other 2.295 -- 573
4. Current Assets (1+2+3) 63,431 17,383 612 17
5. irade Receivables -- --

6a. Monetary Financial Assets -- -- --

6b. Non-Monetarv Financial Asseis -- -- --

7. Olber 59.504 14.523 2.141 --

8. Non-Current Assets (5+6+7) 59,504 14,523 2,141 —

9. Tabii Assets (3+8) 122,935 31,906 2,753 17
10. Trade rayables 1.290 368 -- --

Il. Financial Liahilities 604.630 84.119 77.346 --

1 2a. Other Monetan Liahilities
12b, Otlıer Non-Monetan Liahilities —- -- --

13. Current Liabilities (10+11+12) 605,920 84,487 77,346
14. Trade Pavables -- .. -. --

15. Financial Liahilitics 90,630 -- 22.64!
16a. Otlıer Moncian Liahilities
16b. Other Non-Monetan Liahilitics -- .- -.

17. Non-Current Liabilities (14+15+16) 90,630 — 22,641
18. Total Liabilities (13+17) 696.550 84,487 99.987
19. Net AsseU(Liabilitv) Position of Foreign Currency
Denominated Derivatives Excluded from Financial
Position Statement (19a-19b) — —

19a. Amount of Foreign Currency-Denominated
Derivatives of an Active Nature Exciuded from the
Financial Position Statement —

19b. Amount of Foreign Currency-Denominated
Derivatives of a Passive Nature Excluded from the
Financial Position Statement — — —

20. Net Foreign Currency Assed(Liability) Positiun (9-
18+19) (573,615) (52581) (97,234) 17
21. Monetary ltems Net Foreign Curreney Asset /
(Liabilitv) Position (TFRS 7.B23) (=I+2a+5+6a-I0-l 1-
12a-14-tS-16a) (635,414) (67,104) (99.938) 17
22. Total Fair ‘alue of Financial Instruments Empioyed
for Foreign Exchnnge Hedge —

23. Amount of the Hedged Portion of Foreign Exchange
Assets
24. Amnunt of the Hedged Portion of Foreign Exchange
Liabilities —

(*) Assets and iiabiiities in other currencies are indicated in TRY denomination.
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29 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS FROM FINANCİAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Foreign currency risk (co,ılinued,)

Exclıange risk exposure (conlinued)

The Groupts foreign curreney position as of December 31, 2016 k based on the foreign curreney
based assets and Iiabilities indicated in the stutement below:

December 31, 2016

TRV
Equivalent USD EUR Otlıer (9

1. Trade recei% ables -- -- -- --

2a. Monetan Financial Assels (including safe and
hank accounts) 106.1.11) 17389 12.111 14
2h. Non-Monetan Financial Asseis
3. OLher 5.350 1.513 7 --

4. Current Assets (1+2+3) Il 1.49<) 18.902 12.118 14
5. irade Receivahles
6a. Nionelan Financial Asseis
6b. Non-Moncian Financial .Assets
7. Other 15.365 3.205 153
8. Non-Current Assets (5+6+7) 15365 3205 153 —

9. Total Assets (3+8) 126.855 23.107 12.271 13
10. Trade Pa’.ahles 1.728 37% 108 —

Il. Financial Liabilities 473.99t) 85.465 46.691 —

I2a. Other \lonetan Liahilities — .. — —

12b. Other Non-Monetan Liahilities 43 1 -- 39
13. Current Linbilities (10+11±12) 475.762 65.844 46,799 39
14. Trade Pavables
15. Financial Liahilities 201.430 — 54.296
16a. Other Moneıan Liabilities — — -. —

16b. Other Non-Monetan Liabilities — — — --

17. Non-Current Liabilities (14+15+16) 201,43<) — 54,296 —

18. Total Liabilides (13+17) 677,192 85.844 101.1)95 39
19. Net Asseü(Liahility) Position of Foreign
Currency-Denominated Derivatives Excluded
from Financial Position Statement (19a-19b) .. — —

1%. Amount of Foreign Currency-Denominated
Derivatives of an Active Nature Excluded from the
Financial Position Statement .. — —

19b. Amount of Foreign Currency-Denominnted
Derivatives of a Pnssive Nature Excluded from the
Financial Position Statement
20. Net Foreign Currency Asset/(Liability)
Position (9—18+19) (550337) (62.737) (%8,824) (25)
21. Monetary items Net Foreign Currency Asset /
(Liability) Position (TFRS 7.B23) (=I+2a+5+6a-
10-1 l-12n-14-15-16a) (571,008) (68.453) (88,984) 14
22. Total Fair Value of Financial Instruments
Empioyed for Foreign Exchange Hedge
23. Amount of the Hedged Portion of Foreign
Excbange Assets --

24. Amount of the Hedged Portion of Foreign
Exchange Liabilities

(*) Assets and Iiabilities in other currencies are indicated in TRY denomination,
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29 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS FROM FINANCİAL INSTRUMENTS
(continued)

Foreign currency risk (continııed)

Sensitivity analysis

The Groups foreign exchange risk is generally comprised of TRY’s ehanging value against EUR
and USD.
The basis of the sensitivity analysis which is carried out to measure the foreign exchange risk is
to bring in the total currency explanation within the entity. Total foreign cureney position inclndes
al! foreign currency-denominated slıort-term and long-term purclıasing agreernents and ali such
assets and liabliitles. The anaiysis does not cover net foreign currency investments.

The Groııp delivers its mediurn-term and long-term Ioans over the curreney of the project revenues
it obtains. For short-term Ioans. on the other hand, borrowings are made in TRY: EUR and USD
in a balanced manner under a pool/portfolio model.

Exchange Rale Sensitivity Anaiysis Statenıent

[ June3O,2017

L Proflt/Loss Eguity
Deprecialion Appreciation Depreciation

Appreciation of of foreign of foreign of foreign
( foreign currencv currency currency curency

in the event that USD appreciatesİdepreciales by 10% against TRY

1 - US Dollar net asseVliability (18,441) 18,441 -- --
2- Portion hedged for USD (-) -- -- -- --

3- USD Net Impact (1+2) (18,441) 18,441 -- --
in the event that EUR appreciates/depreciates by 10% against TRY

4- Net asseUliability in Euro (38,923) 38,923 -- --
5- Portion Iıedged for EUR (-) -- -- -- --

6- Euro Net impact (4+5) (38,923) 38,923 -- --
in the event that other foreign currencies appreciate/depreciate by l09 against TRY

7- Other foreign currency net asset/iiability 3 (3)
8- Polion hedged for other foreign curency

(-) --
9- Other Foreign Curreney Assets Net
Impact (7+8) 3 (3) — --
TOTAL (3+6+9) (57.361) 57,361 -- --
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29 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS FROM FİNANCİAL İNSTRUMENTS
(continned)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity anaiysis (co,ıtinııed)

Exchangc Rale Sensitivity Analysis Staterneni
December3l, 2016

Profıt/Loss Eguity
Appreciation Depreciation Appreciation Depreciation

of foreign of foreign of foreign of foreign
currency currency currency cunency

in the event that USD appreciates/depreciates by 10% against TRY
1- US Dollar net asset/iiability (22,078) 22,078 -- --
2- Poflion hedged for USD (-) -- -- --

3- USD Net impact (1+2) 1 (22,078) 22.078 -- --
in the event that EUR appreciates/depreciates by 10% against TRY

1- Net asset’liability in Euro [ (32,953) 32.953 -- --
5- Portion hedged for EUR (-) t -- -- -- --

6- Euro Net impact (4+5) 1 (32.953) 32.953 -- --
in the event that other foreign currencies appreciate’depreciate by 10% against TRY

7- Other foreign cunenev net asset’Iiabihity (2) 2 -- --
8- Poflion hedged for other foreign cureney

(—) ——
9- Other Foreign Curreney Assets Net
Impact (7+8) -- -- -- --
TOTAL (3+6+9) (55,033) 55,033 -- --

Interest risk

Profile

At the reporting date the interest rate profıle of the Group’s interest-bearing financiat instruments
was:

June 30, December 31,
2017 2016

Fixed-interesİ items
Financini assets 857 42,773
Financiai Iiabilities 664,883 624,802

Floating-interest iıems
Financial liabiiities 556.525 466.093

Fair valuc risk offaed-bıterest ifrıns:

The Group does not have any fınancini asset or iiability the fair vaiue of which is recognized in
profit / Ioss. Therefore, changes in interest rates do not have a direct irnpact on shareholders’ eqtıity
items on the reporting date.
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29 NATURE AND LEVEL OF RISKS FROM FİNANCİAL İNSTRUMENTS

(continued}
Interest risk (con!iııııed
(‘ask flu>ı’ risk offloating-iıık’resı’ ileins:
When the Group’s borrowing profıle k laken as basis, it is expected that an increase of 100 basis
points in TRY Benchmark Interest Rale. Euribor or Libor would cause an approximate increase of
TRY 5,565 (December 31, 2016: TRY 4,661) before tax in the annual interest expenses of the
Groups floating-interest payables

As of June 30, 2017 and December 31, 2016, if interest rates increase by 1 basis point, the
consolidated comprehensive income statement would be affected as follows. While performing
the analysis, it is assumed that alI other variables, chiefly the foreign exchange rates, rernained
flxed.

Interest Position Statement
June 30, 2017 December 31. 2016

Fixed-Intcrest Financial Ins(ruments
Assets the fair value of which -- —-

is reco°nized in profıt!Ioss
Fınancıal assets

Fınancıal assets avaılable for — --

sale
Financial liabilities — --

Floating-Interest Financial Instrumcnts —- —-

Financial asseis -- --

Financial liabilitles (5,565) (4,661)

Capital Risk Management

The Groups objectives in managing the capital is to yield returns for shareholders and beneflts for
other sharehoiders, and maintain the Group’s operability in order to sustain the most appropriate
shareholding structure to reduce cost of capital.

To maintain or rearrange the shareholding structure, the Group determines the dividends to be paid
to shareholders. issues new shares and selis assets to reduce borrowing.

The Group monitors the capital by using the net financial Iiabiiitylequity ratio. Net financial
iiability k calculated by deducting cash and cash equivalents from the total amount of financial
iiabiiity.

The ratios of net liability/invested capital as of June 30, 2017 and December 31. 2016 are as
follows:

June 30,2017 December 31, 2016
Total financial Iiabilities 1,221,408 1,090,895
Cash rescncs and hanks (*) (62,542) (107,070)
Net fınancial liabilicv 1,158,866 931825
Eguity 1,577,418 1,963,504
Net fınancial Iiability / eguity ratio 0.73 0.50

(*)As ofiune 30, 2017, amounts ofcash reserves and banks include in addition to cash and cash
equivalents, the restricted total bank balance ofTRY 60,729 the Group owns as vell as its long
term financial investments (December 31,2016: TRY 60,938).
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30 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
Akfen Holding and suhsidiaries:

4 kfeıı Hıildine

Akfen Holding decided to seli its 8.1 19% stake in TAV Airporis to Tank ÖWA Aipha GmbH. an
existing shareholder of TAV Airports. for the amoıınt of US$ 160 million, for the transaction to
be foiiowed and completed by Akfen signature authorities, and also to accept the transactions
already made in this matter at the Extraordinaıy General Meeting held on July 3, 2017.

The Company has signed a share sale agreement for alI of its 8.119% stake in TAV Airporis with
Tank OWA Alpha GmbH on iune 9,2017, for the arnount of US$ 160 rnillion and the shares were
transferred after the closing conditions vere cornpleted as ofluly 7, 2017.

The Company has signed a share sale agreernent for its 40% stake in Mersin Uluslararası Liman
Işletmeciliği A.Ş. with Global lnfraCo SP NEUM SLU on July 28. 2017, for the arnount of US$
869 miillion.

TA VAirporıs

According to the announcement dated July 7, 2017, the share transfer ofAkfen Holding’s 8.119%
stake in TAV Airpons to Tank OWA Alpha GmbH. which is whoily owned by Groupe ADP, has
been completed. After the said transaction, the shareholder structure ofTAV Airports is as below:
Groupe ADP: 46.12% Tepe İnsaat Sanayi AS. : 8.06% Sera Yapı Endustrisi ve Ticaret AS: 2.05%
Other non-floating: 3.27% Other free-float: 40.50% .According to the Board Resolution after the
said transaction: the Board of Directors (BoD) of the Company, in its meeting held on JuIy 07,
2017. accepted the resignations of board rnernbers, Akfen Holding AS. Bilkent Holding A.S. and
Mr. Augııstin Pascal Pierre Louis Marie de Romanet de Beaune. The Board of Directors has also
resoived to appoint Mr. Phihppe Eric Pascal, Mr. Franck Mereyde and Mr. Fernando Echegaray
del Pozo to the vacant seats in the BoD. The new members wili be presented to the General
Assembly for approval.

Akfen Renewable Energy:

An application was submiued to EMRA on July 14, 2017 to terminate the hcensing period of
Akfen Renewabhe Energy’s subsidiary Zeki’s Çatak HEPP Project, which was in the planning
phase with a totai instalied capacity of 10.0 MW On August 9, 2017, our guarantee letter was
returned by EMRA.

Akfen Renewable Energvs subsidiaries Dalga Enerji, Hazine Enerji, Uranüs Enerji, Zincir Enerji
and Düzey Enerji A.Ş SPP Project’s units with ü total installed power capacit of 10.44 M\V and
located in the province of Amasya, obtained temporan acceptance from TEDAŞ on August 12,
2017, the power plants have staned commercial energy production as ofAngust 15, 2017 10:00.
and are expected to produce 14.65 GWh of electricitv annually. Thus, the total installed capacity
of the SPP portfolio of Akfen Renewable Energy has reached 26.2 MW.

With the iener dated August 15, 2017 of the Privatization Administration ve have been informed
that the decision dated June 12,2017, and numbered 2017/54 of the Privatization Supreme Council
regarding the tender for the privatization of Menzelet and Kılavuzlu HEPP and the immovable
used by these power plants, and the decision of the Tender Commission decision dated November
7,2016. have been cancelled.
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